
 

 

ABABABAB    
STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 15 JANUARY 2014 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.  

Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration. 
 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 19 November 2013 
 

3 - 10 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

 

 The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is 
published and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the 
expiry of 3 working days after the publication of the decision (not including 
the date of publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is 
received from any two Members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny 
Commissions..  If a request for call-in of a decision is received, 
implementation of the decision remains suspended for consideration by the 
relevant Scrutiny Committee or Commission. 
 

 

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 The Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee will sit for items 5 and 6 only. 

 
5. Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2011 - 14 

 
11 - 42 

6. Fly-Tipping Prosecutions 
 

43 - 46 

7. A Strategy for Culture, Recreation and the Arts for Peterborough 
 

47 - 54 

8. Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 

55 - 68 

Public Document Pack



 

 

9. Work Programme 
 

69 - 76 

10. Date of Next Meeting 
 

 

 26 March 2014 
 

 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Dania Castagliuolo on 01733 452347 as soon as possible. 
 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: M Lee (Chair), S Day (Vice Chairman), P Kreling, G Simons, J Johnson, L Forbes and 
J R Fox 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: D Over, N Shabbir and B Saltmarsh 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Dania Castagliuolo on telephone 
01733 452347 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 



 
 

AB 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

HELD IN THE 
BOURGES & VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH 

ON 
TUESDAY 19 NOVEMBER 2013  

 
Present: Councillors  Lee (Chairman) Day (Vice Chairman), Kreling, Jamil, Forbes and 

Fox 
 

Also Present: 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor North 
 
Councillor Elsey 
 
Councillor Maqbool 
Councillor Casey 
 
Councillor Khan 
Jennifer Sherritt 
 
  

Cabinet Member for Environment Capital and 
Neighbourhoods 
Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation and Waste 
Management 
PCC 
Cabinet Advisor to the Cabinet Member for Recreation 
and Waste Management 
Representing Labour Group 
Vice Chair of Communities Against Selective 
Licensing (CASL) 

Officers in 
Attendance: 

Gary Goose 
Jawaid Khan 
Adrian Chapman   
Dominic Hudson 
Lisa Helin 
Belinda Child 
Jo Hodges  
Dania Castagliuolo  

Safer and Stronger Peterborough Strategic Manager  
Cohesion Manager  
Head of Neighbourhood Services   
Strategic Partnerships Manager 
Strategic Client Manager  
Strategic Housing Manager 
Housing Enforcement Officer   
Governance Officer  

 
1. Apologies 
 

Apologies were received from Councillor Simons and Councillor Johnson. Councillor Jamil was in 
attendance as Substitute for Councillor Johnson.  
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 
With reference to item 8 on the agenda, ‘Proposed Selective Licensing for the Gladstone, Millfield, 
New England and Eastfield Areas of Peterborough’, the following declarations of interest were made: 
 

• Councillor Jamil declared that he owned two properties in the proposed Selective Licensing area. 
 

• Councillor Khan declared that he was a landlord in the proposed Selective Licensing area and the 
Director of Legal and Governance had given him dispensation to contribute to discussions. 

 
3. Minutes of the meeting held on  11 September 2013  
 

The minutes of the Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 11 
September 2013 were approved as an accurate record. 
 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

There were no requests for Call-in to consider 
 
 

3



 
 

 
 
 
CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE SITTING FOR ITEM 5 ONLY 

 
5. Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2011 – 2014  
  

The Safer and Stronger Peterborough Manager introduced the report which updated the Committee 
on the progress and performance of the Safer Peterborough Partnership’s approach to building 
stronger and supportive communities, in accordance with the Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 
2011 – 14.  
 
The following key points were highlighted within the report: 
 

• The Safer Peterborough Partnership took the view that sustainable reductions in crime and 
disorder could not be achieved by the reactive response from services alone. Sustainable change 
came from within communities where peer pressure made crime and disorder socially 
unacceptable and was realised by behaviour change. 

• This element of work was historically co-ordinated by the Council’s Neighbourhood Management 
Team and was now coordinated by the management of the Safer Peterborough team and the 
Community Operations team. 

• In order to progress towards such behaviour change the Partnership had taken the following 
strategic direction: 

 
- To actively support and assist the development of residents groups and community associations.  
- To support and champion such schemes as Neighbourhood Watch, Business Watch, Allotment 
Watch, Neighbourhood Champions and Street Pastors.  

- To develop real citizen involvement in the management of prioritised areas, such as the Operation 
CanDo programme and its governance. 

- To increase its visibility of, and response to, quality of life issues that were often a pre-curser to 
anti-social behaviour and crime.  

- To embrace the work of Professor Wilkstrom and the Cambridge University Institute of 
Criminology’s work: Peterborough Adolescent and Young Adult Development Study (PADS). 

- To host the Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Commissioners Outreach Worker, alongside the 
Safer Peterborough and Community Operations Team and to shortly offer the same facility to a 
Peterborough specific lead for victim support  

- To lead continuing work around Community Cohesion through the Cohesion Board and; 
- To ensure schemes for individual communities for those at risk of offending, where behaviour 
change is supported but poor behaviour challenged, were supported appropriately 

 
Members were asked to note the approach, progress and performance so far and to endorse the 
partnership’s direction of travel and to make any comments or suggestions as appropriate. 
 
Observations and questions were raised around the following areas: 
 

• Members commented that that they had not seen the presence of the working relationship which 
was stated on page 12, 5.8 of the report and queried how to get the community involved in these 
projects. The Safer and Stronger Peterborough Strategic Manager advised members that there 
had been problems historically with Neighbourhood Watch as members were generally middle 
aged white people, it did not appeal to the younger generation.  

• The Head of Neighbourhood Services commented that it was important to note that there had 
been a newly announced restructure within the council and the new structure pulled together many 
of the council’s departments which would make a difference. 

• Members commented that the termination of Neighbourhood Committees had lost the work that 
Neighbourhoods had achieved.  

• Members queried whether having more Neighbourhood Panel meetings would help reach out to 
the communities. Members were advised that this would help, especially in Central Ward as it was 
a challenging area. 

4



 
 

• Members queried whether Operation CanDo was making progress. Members were advised that 
that it had been a success in the designated areas with a reduction in the number of calls being 
made and a reduction in crime. There were 3000 fewer victims of crime in Peterborough, even 
though crime was underreported.  

• Members commented that they were pleased with the reduction in burglaries in Peterborough and 
queried whether arson in the city had reduced as it was not shown in the report. Members were 
informed that there had been a 30% reduction of arson in the city. There had been a recent bout of 
arson due to a specific issue, although the general trend was low. 

• Members queried whether the Neighbourhood Watch Scheme had made a difference to the 
number of burglaries. Members were advised that the burglary rate was lower where there was a 
Neighbourhood Watch Scheme in place and the aim was to encourage Neighbourhood Watch in 
areas where the burglary rate was high. 

• Members commented that the statistics shown within the report could be misleading and did not 
believe that Anti-social Behaviour and Criminal Damage was reducing. Members were informed 
that this could be due to the underreporting of these crimes, however the final chart did indicate 
reductions in these crimes 

• Members requested information on the issues in Central Ward. Members were advised that it was 
difficult to compare Central Ward with other areas in Peterborough. Diversity in Central Ward was 
great, it was a dense housing area with low cost housing. Central Ward needed long term 
commitment in order to make it a better area to live in.   

 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the report  
 

6. Portfolio Holder Report from Cabinet Member for Environment Capital and Neighbourhoods 
 
The Cabinet Member Environment Capital and Neighbourhoods introduced the report which provided 
the Committee with an update in relation to matters relevant to the Committee. The Cabinet Member 
invited questions from the Committee. 
 
Observations and questions were raised around the following areas: 
 

• Members queried why the three initiatives on page 19 of the report (Sports & Leisure, Training and 
Environmental Crime) had no work being carried out on them. The Community Cohesion Manager 
advised members that the projects listed on page 19 were based on work that had been carried 
out with Neighbourhoods over a long period of time. There were no live projects being led on 
these subjects at present which the Cabinet Member was overseeing. 

• Members queried what the situation was with the Children’s Centres. Members were advised that 
the Neighbourhoods team had visited the centres and met with the groups that would potentially 
run them. They were happy that the groups were doing well so far. The only problem would be if 
there were any major underlying issues with the structures. 

• Members queried if all of the Children’s Centres would succeed and if the council was committed 
to resolving the issues that could potentially arise. Members were informed that the council’s 
commitment would depend on financial implications therefore they could not guarantee that all 
issues would be resolved. 

• Members queried whether the council would remain landlords of the children’s centres. Members 
were informed that long leases would be given although the council would remain owners of the 
land. 

• Members queried whether the council would still be involved in the running of the Children’s 
Centres. Members were advised that the idea was to move the centres further away from the 
council and let the community groups take over the running of them. 

• Members commented that properties and activities used to sit under the remit of Children and 
Education and queried whether this had been moved in to the remit of Neighbourhoods, or if they 
were doing the work and reporting back. Members were advised that Neighbourhoods were 
making the decisions and moving forwards with the projects.  

• Members queried whether building surveys had been carried out and if the council were going to 
pay for the repairs required. Members were informed that funding was a major factor as to whether 

5



 
 

the council would pay for any repairs needed on the children’s centres. Funding had been 
extended until the end of March and the idea was to get each building in to a good serviceable 
condition before moving forward. 

• Members queried if children’s centres were going to be part of the Community Asset Transfer 
Strategy and if so suggested that the council should contribute towards the maintenance and 
insurances of the centres.  

• Members were informed that work was currently being carried out on Section 106 and POIS 
money in preparation for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The money would be pooled 
and distributed. 

 
ACTION AGREED  
 
The Committee noted the report and agreed to receive a briefing note in the New Year regarding 
progress on each of the Play Centres. 
 

7. The Heritage Ambition   
 
The report provided members with an update on the city’s Heritage ambition and Heritage Action 
Plan.   The following key points were highlighted within the report: 
 

• Heritage was one part of the city’s culture.  

• Peterborough had a rich, diverse and exciting heritage which was unique to the city. 
Peterborough’s heritage had helped to shape how the city had grown over the years and people 
and cultures within it. 

• Heritage played an important role in support of other council services and the aspirations for the 
city. 

• The city council’s objectives supported by the ambition were as follows: 
- Tourism and visitor engagement which in turn supported the local economy. 
- Supporting educational skills and learning.  
- Health and well-being by adding quality to people’s lives.  
- Community cohesion and engagement through being accessible to everyone from all 
backgrounds and walks of life to help bring the city’s culture to life.  

• Peterborough had many heritage assets, the Museum, Flag Fen, the recent discovery of Bronze 
Age boats at Must Farm. 

• High profile sites such as the Cathedral, St Johns Church, John Clare Cottage, Burghley House 
and Sacrewell Farm, were all in close proximity to Peterborough.  

• Work was underway to refresh the Peterborough’s approach to tourism to ensure the full 
economic benefit of all these heritage sites and attractions was realised. 
 

The Commission was recommended to comment on the city’s Heritage Ambition at Annex 1 and the 
Heritage Action Plan at Annex 2. 
 

Observations and questions were raised around the following areas: 
 

• Members commented that Annex 2 was very useful and suggested that the opportunity for 
assistance from groups within the city with the World War 1 centenary was not lost. Members were 
advised that the Leader of the council had commissioned Councillor Swift to look in to the World 
War 1 Centenary. 

• Members commented that they were concerned that a great opportunity was being missed by not 
having a festival which included diverse communities and Peterborough should play a role in 
celebrating diversity. 
    

ACTIONS AGREED  
 
The Committee noted the report  
 
 
 

6



 
 

 
 

8. Proposed Selective Licensing for the Gladstone, Millfield, New England and Eastfield Areas of 
Peterborough   
 
The report provided Members with information on the proposed Selective Licensing Scheme for 
privately rented accommodation in the Gladstone, Milfield, New England and Eastfield areas of 
Peterborough. The following key points were highlighted within the report: 
 

• Providing warm, safe and secure housing was the cornerstone of a strong society and the 
proposed Selective Licensing Scheme was one of the tools available to the council to regulate the 
private rented housing sector to achieve this. 

• Whenever considering whether to make a Selective Licensing designation councils must also 
ensure that the exercise of power was consistent with their overall Housing Strategy, in 
accordance with Section 81 (2) of the Housing Act 2004.  

• Objective One – To support the delivery of substantial yet truly sustainable growth. 
- The first objective of the Housing Strategy related to the scale and nature of housing growth 
that was required to meet the needs of the existing and future population, as well as supporting 
Peterborough’s economic performance and employment growth.  

• Objective Two – To secure the regeneration of and improvements to Peterborough’s 
housing stock.  
- The second objective of the Housing Strategy related to the role that housing regeneration and 
improvements could play in wider neighbourhood renewal, meeting Peterborough’s 
Environment Capital ambitions and improving health of the local population. 

• Objective Three – To meet existing and future housing needs.  
- Objective three related to how the city council and its partners would work to meet the growing 
needs of the residents of Peterborough, including disabled households, those unable to afford 
market housing and those threatened with or experiencing homelessness. 

• Objective Four – To create mixed and sustainable communities.  
- The final objective set out in the strategy related to how the city council would seek to utilise its 
housing agenda to ensure that future neighbourhoods created and the communities that lived 
within them were mixed, thriving and sustainable.  

• The proposed Selective Licensing area was a high density private sector residential area 
consisting of approximately 10,933 properties.  

• In the Gladstone, Millfield and New England Area over 40% of the properties were privately rented 
and in Eastfield area 33% of the properties were privately rented. 

• There were approximately 3446 properties which had been identified as privately rented and 
would require a license if the proposed Selective Licensing scheme was introduced.  

• The area covered 108 streets in Gladstone, Millfield and New England and 76 streets in Eastfield. 

• The council wanted to ensure that standards were high across the private rented sector and 
Selective Licensing would form a part of a wider set of measures that seek to address issues 
within the private rented sector associated with anti-social behaviour and low demand. 

• The levels of private rented accommodation in the area had dramatically increased which was 
demonstrated with the private rented sector representing over 40% in Gladstone, Millfield and 33% 
in Eastfield compare to the 20.5% across the city and 16% nationally.  

• Peterborough’s private rented sector had many good, responsible landlords and agents, however 
the sector did have problems, including within the proposed Selective Licensing area.  

• The increasing size of the private rented sector and decrease in the number of owner occupied 
dwellings was creating unbalanced communities 

• Since 2009 the council had operated an additional licensing scheme within the Operation Can Do 
area of the city. Additional licensing required that all houses in multiple occupation (HMO) had a 
licence to operate as such.  

• Since the inception of the HMO licensing scheme 67 properties had been licensed and 9 landlords 
had been prosecuted with fines ranging from £500 to £12,000.  

• During the term of the current licensing scheme a number of landlords had taken the drastic step 
of illegally evicting tenants when the council had asked them to apply for a license.  

• A recent survey conducted in the Selective Licensing area had revealed that 45% of the residents 
in the area thought that there was a high turnover of private tenants in the area, 88% thought that 

7



 
 

landlords should make sure their properties were in good condition and well maintained, 71% 
thought that landlords should demand references from prospective tenants and 79% though that 
landlords should be responsible for dealing with their nuisance tenants and anti-social behaviour. 

• Selective Licensing would extend housing choice and increase the confidence of occupiers in the 
designated area. 

• Landlords would be required to take ownership of their management responsibilities thus 
increasing the prospect of long-term trouble free renting. 

• The Selective Licensing was proposed on the following ground: 
- The area was, or was likely to become an area of low housing demand; and  
- That making a designation would, when combined with other measures taken in the area by the 
local housing authority, or by other persons together with the local housing authority, contribute 
to the improvement of the social or economic conditions and therefore significantly reduce anti-
social behaviour in the area.  

- Following agreement from cabinet a 13 week public consultation had commenced which would 
run until 27 December 2013.  

- Once the consultation had finished and all the responses had been analysed, and alternative 
proposals had been thoroughly investigated and researched, the final proposed scheme would 
be presented to Cabinet for approval and implementation.  

 
The Committee was asked to review and scrutinise the proposed Selective Licensing scheme for 
privately rented accommodation in the Gladstone, Millfield, New England and Eastfield areas of 
Peterborough. 
 
Councillor Maqbool addressed the Committee as a representative for West Ward with the following 
concerns: 
 

• The Royal Bank of Scotland and NatWest had refused to lend money to Selective Licensing 
landlords and it was common practice for landlords to buy properties in the city centre. 

• The Selective Licensing scheme would affect 20% of Peterborough residents. 

• The Selective Licencing criteria would affect landlords as well as tenants.  

• Constituents felt that the Selective Licensing Scheme would stigmatise and label their areas. 

• Landlords and tenants had already worked hard to reduce anti-social behaviour in their 
neighbourhoods and they felt that this scheme was discourteous to the work of Councillors and 
local residents. 

• 0.3% of houses had been empty long term. Lincoln Road was a very busy place in Peterborough 
and this was the reason for the anti-social behaviour. 

• There were 110 different languages spoken in the proposed areas, although the consultation was 
only distributed in English, constituents felt that the survey had been manipulated. 
 
Jennifer Sherritt, Vice Chair of Communities Against Selective Licensing (CASL), addressed the 
Committee with the following: 
 

• No landlords were against their areas being improved, although they did not understand why the 
Selective Licensing scheme was being brought in to Peterborough when most landlords were 
good landlords and abided by the rules. 
 
 
Observations and questions were raised around the following areas: 
 

• Members commented that they understood the principal of the scheme and the objectives were 
very good, although they wanted to ensure that this scheme was the best one for Peterborough. 

• Members commented that it was difficult to understand why this scheme was the best solution for 
rogue landlords in Peterborough and why these problems could not be solved without it. Antisocial 
behaviour was already decreasing which indicated that the other schemes the council had in place 
were effective. The Strategic Housing Manager advised Members that part of the research in to 
this scheme was liaising with other Local Authorities that had Selective Licensing in place. The 
only two options for a licensing scheme were Selective Licensing and HMO Licensing, in 2009 the 
council chose HMO Licensing and this has proven not to be successful.   

8



 
 

• Members queried whether landlord accreditation would be mandatory. Members were informed 
that it would be a voluntary decision for landlords to be accredited. The idea of the Selective 
Licensing scheme was to deal with the rogue landlords and promote good landlords. 

• Members commented that car insurance premiums for central ward were already very high and 
implementing this scheme would only give it a reputation as more of a problem area rather than an 
area which was improving. 

• Members commented that there had been no consultation with ward Councillors prior to the 
Selective Licensing report which had left Members with serious reservations regarding the 
scheme. 

• Members felt that the consultation questions were misleading and led everyone who filed it in to 
state that they wanted the scheme implemented. 

• Members requested reassurance that the council had consulted with the genuine landlords to 
investigate how issues could be dealt with. 

• Members commented that the anti-social behaviour statistics for Central Ward also included the 
night time economy statistics therefore the results were bound to be higher than anywhere else in 
the city. 

• Members queried what would happen if a majority of landlords were against the scheme. 
Members were advised that the Selective Licensing scheme brought together all powers relating 
to housing and management which the council do not currently possess. It brought everything 
under one license and enabled the Local Authority to take action. 

• Members were advised that over 18.5 thousand people had been consulted for this scheme. The 
council had held drop in sessions and met with the National Landlords Association. The scheme 
was currently a proposal and not a final project. 

• Members queried what the money collected from Selective Licensing Scheme would be spent on. 
Members were advised that the money would be used on the administration of the scheme and 
projections showed that the money collected would cover all admin costs. 

• Members commented that landlords would most likely include the Selective Licensing charges on 
to the monthly rental for their tenants. 
 

ACTION AGREED 
 

The Committee noted the report and requested that the following be fed in to the consultation: 
 

• Evidence should be collected to ensure that Selective Licensing was the best scheme for the city. 

• To take in to account the perception of racial exploitation that ethnic groups had with regard to the 
introduction of the Selective Licensing Scheme in the Can Do area and how this could be 
dispelled. 
 

9.    Scrutiny in a Day: Understanding and Managing the impacts of Welfare Reform on 
Communities 

 in Peterborough 
 

The report provided an update to all Scrutiny Committees and Commissions on the progress being   
made towards organising the Scrutiny in a Day event on 17 January 2014 
 
Scrutiny Members were asked to: 
 

• Review the progress being made, especially the plans for the day itself, and suggest other content 
that was relevant to their own Scrutiny Committee or Commission.  

• Suggest a small number of key themes relevant to their Scrutiny Committee or Commission that 
they would especially like to focus on during the combined scrutiny event. 
 

ACTION AGREED  
 

The Committee noted the report and suggested that the impact on children due to Welfare Reform 
was addressed at the event. 
 
 

9



 
 

 
 
 

10.   Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions 
 

  The Committee received the latest version of the Council’s Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions, 
containing key decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
Members would make during the course of the following four months.  Members were invited to 
comment on the Plan and, where appropriate, identify any relevant areas for inclusion in the 
Committee’s work programme. 

 
ACTION AGREED 

 
The Committee noted the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions. 

 
11.   Work Programme 2013/2014 

 
This was an opportunity for Members to review the Work Programme for 2013/14 and discuss 
possible items for inclusion. 
 

ACTION AGREED 
 

• Members noted the work programme and confirmed agreement with the current plan.  
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting began at 7.00pm and ended at 8.55pm                                              CHAIRMAN 
 

10



STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 5 

15 JANUARY 2014 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Strategic Manager: Safer and Stronger Peterborough                                        
 
Contact Officer(s) – Gary Goose 
Contact Details – 863780 
 

SAFER PETERBOROUGH PARTNERSHIP PLAN 2011-14 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This report is to seek the views and input of the Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny 

Committee into the development of the new Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan.   
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 
 
 
2.2 

Members are asked to note the direction of travel of the Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 
and to make suggestions as to items for inclusion therein. 
 
Members are also asked to note that the draft Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan will, when 
produced, return to this Committee for discussion and debate in order that an agreed version 
can be recommended to Cabinet for approval. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
 

3.1 The Sustainable Community Strategy aims to deliver a bigger and better Peterborough, through 
improving the quality of life for all.  This Partnership Plan covers those aspects that fall within 
the Strong and Supportive Communities priority.  
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
4.5 
 
 

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires that a Community Safety Partnership is formed, 
bringing together agencies who are responsible for crime and disorder across the local area.   
 
The Crime and Disorder Act specifies ‘responsible authorities’, and in the case of the 
Peterborough Unitary Authority area these are specified as: Peterborough City Council; 
Cambridgeshire Constabulary; The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning 
Group; Cambridgeshire Fire Authority; and Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Probation Trust.   
 
Responsible authorities also invite other agencies who are able to contribute to the work to co-
operate and Cross Keys Homes (representing Registered Social Landlords in the city) is one of 
these organisations.  Other agencies, particularly from the voluntary and community sector, are 
also invited to participate in the work of the Partnership.  At present these organisations are 
Peterborough Council for Voluntary Service, Peterborough Racial Equality Council, HM Prison 
Peterborough, the Director of Public Health and The One Service.   
 
In addition, legislation places a mutual duty of co-operation upon the Partnership and the 
elected Police and Crime Commissioner for Cambridgeshire. 
 
The Safer Peterborough Partnership is one of the partnerships that form the Greater 
Peterborough Partnership. 
 

 

11



 
4.6 
 

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places on designated authorities a legal 
responsibility to consider the community safety implications of their actions. 
 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 

5.1 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
 
5.6 
 

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998, revised by the Police and Justice Act 2006, requires that the 
Community Safety Partnership publishes an annual Partnership Plan.  
 
The current Safer Peterborough Partnership strategic three-year plan concludes at the end of 
March 2014. Since the Partnership embarked upon it a number of amendments have been 
made to the Crime and Disorder Act. The purpose of the amendments is to revoke regulations 
which place unnecessary prescription on Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) and to give 
CSPs greater flexibility to carry out their duties in a way that is locally determined. 
  
One specific amendment relevant to this report is as follows: 
  

• The removal of the requirement for the partnership plan to set out a strategy covering a 
set three-year period (any period is acceptable) 

  
There has also been some minor re-wording of the responsibilities of the partnership; for clarity 
the wording is now that the partnership is responsible for: 
  

• Reducing crime and disorder, combatting the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other 
substances, and reducing reoffending. 

  
Scrutiny of the plan under the Crime and Disorder Act still exists and the Strong and Supportive 
Communities Scrutiny Committee remain the responsible Crime and Disorder Act Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
There are a number of considerations for the next iteration of the Safer Peterborough 
Partnership Strategic Plan. Some of these are set out below and the committee are invited to 
comment upon each: 
 

• Duration of the strategic plan 
 

• Direction of the plan 
 

• Inclusion or otherwise of specific categories of crime  
 

• Performance management and targets 
 

• Delivery of the plan 
 

5.7 
 
5.7.1 
 
 
 
5.7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Duration of the Plan. 
 
Some of the success of recent years has been the consistency of approach during the current 
three-year plan and thus it is suggested that we consider a further over-arching strategic plan to 
cover a set period; the alternative would be to produce stand-alone annual plans. 
 
Without this approach, annual plans could lose the consistent overview and approach, replaced 
with whatever is ‘fashionable’ at the time. An overarching strategy, based upon the principles of 
the partnership, could and should be a short document but one which is easily understood by 
all. It is therefore suggested that another three-year period would be appropriate, especially 
important given the continuing austerity that most statutory partners are facing with the resultant 
and inevitable staff changes that will occur. 
  
 
 

12



 
5.7.3 
 
 
 
 
5.7.4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
5.7.5 
 
 
 
 

 
5.8 
 
5.8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.8.2 
 
 
 
5.8.3 
 
 
 
5.9 
 
5.9.1 
 
 
5.9.2 
 
 
 
 

 
If the strategic plan is based upon an overarching strategy the partnership’s strategic 
assessment would be used to set our specific themes and tactical delivery for the year ahead 
from April 2014. 
  
 
It would also be based on the some of the principles of the Sustainable Community Strategy 
and associated Single Delivery Plan: 

• Outcomes not organisations 

• Root causes rather symptoms 

• Being innovative 

• Local solutions to local issues 
  
The priorities set out in the 2011-24 Plan attached are: 
 

• Reducing Crime 

• Tackling anti-social behaviour and hate crime 

• Building stronger and more supportive communities 
 
Direction of the Plan 
 
The current three year plan is explicit in its intention as follows: 
 
“This plan will demonstrate the direction of travel for making the City and its people safer.  
 

• It will show our resolve in protecting those who are vulnerable within our communities.  

• It will be clear about our partnership’s commitment to tackling the underlying causes of 
offending but will be equally clear that those who continue to offend or bring risk of harm 
to our City will be targeted with the full weight of the criminal justice system. 

• It will illustrate how we intend our approach to be sustainable and improve the lives of 
the people living, working and visiting our City. 

 
“This three year plan will need to be flexible, adaptable and responsive to the ever changing 
landscape of financial restraint, the drive for localism and greater community engagement, the 
introduction of the new Policing and Crime Commissioner, changes funding arrangements and 
partner organisations all undergoing individual and significant structural reviews. 
 
“This new approach, freed of considerable bureaucracy, aims to bring long-term sustainable 
reductions in crime and disorder and to lead in the creation of stronger, supportive and cohesive 
communities”. 
 
The 2011-14 plan placed prevention as the focus of partnership activity, whilst supporting the 
individual core responsibilities of each organisational partner. It was also explicit in its support 
for the ‘broken window theory’ relating to anti-social behaviour and associated crime.  
 
The development of a new community safety delivery model should ensure consistency in this 
aspect and it is therefore suggested that there is no change to the intention of the previous 
three year plan. 
 
Inclusion or otherwise of specific categories of crime  
 
For the last three years the partnership have concentrated upon one single target – reducing 
victim based crime by 10%.  
 
However, the partnership has continued to monitor on a monthly basis a whole raft of individual 
crime types and other quality of life indicators based upon a threat, risk and harm matrix.  
 
 
 

13



 
5.9.3 
 
 
 
 
 
5.9.4 
 
 
 
5.9.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.10 
 
5.10.1 
 
 
5.10.2 
 
 
 
5.10.3 
 
5.11 
 
5.11.1 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This approach has allowed a focus on the system as a whole rather than focussing on one 
individual crime type. Impetus to reduce specific crimes has not been lost, in particular those 
that cause the City and its inhabitants the most harm. This has been largely achieved by a focus 
upon themes such as a strong focus on a good quality integrated approach to offender 
management and quality substance misuse services.  
 
It is therefore suggested that we should continue to develop themes that maintain the victim at 
the centre of services and support/challenge those who offend, thereby helping us to continue 
the success of recent years with the strategic assessment providing the detail. 
 
To this end, the following themes are considered essential in continuing to drive down crime, all 
of which are current but all which have challenges presented in the immediate future: 
 

• Maintaining an integrated approach to offender management cognisant of the impending 
changes to the rehabilitation agenda and the restructure of probation services 

 

• Continuing the development of good quality domestic abuse and sexual violence 
services 

 

• Developing further quality substance misuse services in challenging financial times 
 

• Developing further an integrated City-wide approach to managing anti-social behaviour  
 
 
Performance management and targets 
 
The Partnership have a developing performance monitoring framework based around its 
monthly meeting structure.  
 
The level of scrutiny now afforded to the Partnership through this scrutiny committee ensures 
that all elements of the plan are publically scrutinised. It is therefore suggested that there is no 
change to current scrutiny arrangements. 
 
The current performance of the partnership is appended to this report.  
 
Delivery of the plan 
 
One of the strengths of delivery of the current plan is the multi-agency, single management 
team arrangements that are in place for the delivery arm of the partnership. Work is currently 
underway to formalise and strengthen these arrangements. Monitoring the impact of such 
changes would be something that should be considered as a specific theme in any plan from 
April 2014 onwards. This should be a specific element for scrutiny in due course. 
 

  
6. IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1 The success of the Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan from 2014 onwards will be a key 

determinant in quality of life of people who live, work and visit the area.  
 
7. 

 
CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 
 

The development of the Plan will be further informed by a detailed strategic assessment and 
information obtained through public consultation events and the neighbourhood panel process. 
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 The Plan will be further discussed at the Safer Peterborough Partnership board meeting in 
January and returned to Scrutiny at its next meeting. 

14



 
9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 
9.1 None 

 
10. APPENDICES 

 
10.1 Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2011-2014 

Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2013 revision. 
Safer Peterborough Performance November 2013. 
 
 

  

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



SaferPeterborough
Partnership Plan

2011 to 2014

17



The partnership is responsible for making our city 

a safer place to live, work and visit. Its vision is to 

empower neighbourhoods to help cut crime and reduce 

anti-social behaviour, which will create and sustain 

strong and supportive communities.

The SaferPeterborough team is responsible for delivery 

of this vision and is structured to focus on three priority 

areas:

These priorities cover nine themes that 

concern communities the most:

Peterborough is a community 
safety partnership made up of local 
organisations who work together to 
reduce crime and the fear of crime 

in Peterborough.

1Fr
on

t 
co

ve
r 

b
ot

to
m

 r
ig

h
t 

p
h
ot

o 
co

u
rt

es
y 

of
 t

h
ep

os
h
.c

om

The plan spans a three-year period and is 

updated annually to reflect findings from strategic 

assessments that paint a picture of crime, disorder 

and safety in our neighbourhoods.

The plan supports

, which sets out the direction for the overall 

The Peterborough team

Assistants

strategic development of Peterborough, resulting in a 

single delivery plan.

Visit   

to view the partnership plan in full 

or call and ask for the 

SaferPeterborough team who will post the plan  

to you.

Government requires the SaferPeterborough partnership to produce 
a  that identifies the areas it prioritises action 
each year. 

1
8



Reduction of crime types

Serious acquisitive crime 3,926 3,054 -872 - 22.2%

Theft / unauthorised 

taking of a vehicle

424 313 -111 - 26.2%

Violent crime 4,657 4,591 -66 - 1.4%

Serious sexual offences 252 237 -15 - 6.0%

Invitees to participate are:

From April 2010 to March 2011 crime in Peterborough 

reduced by 10 per cent.

We have:

2 3

The results are:

 27 per cent reduction

£1,212,428 

26 per cent reduction

£977,714

18 per cent reduction

2,200 

25 per cent fewer 

Achievements: April 2010 to March 2011

Crime reduction by areas

North West 3,942 3,265

North East 2,968 2,289

South West 1,989 1,792

South East 2,960 2,939

East North 2,901 2,506

East South 1,733 1,568

Central -  

City Centre 

3,243 3,154

Central - 

Central North

1,565 1,559

Some challenges remain despite crime levels having 

fallen across the city. 

The SaferPeterborough partnership brings together 

 who, under Section 17 of the 

Crime and Disorder Act 1998, have a duty to consider 

the community safety implications of their actions. 

The responsible authorities are:

 are local groups or 

organisations that contribute significantly to 

community safety. The Crime and Disorder Act makes 

co-operating bodies key partners in the setting and 

delivery of objectives. Co-operating authorities provide 

information to improve the understanding of local crime 

and disorder problems, thereby benefiting the core 

functions of the partnership.

Cross Keys Homes (representing registered social 

landlords) is a co-operating authority of the partnership.

SaferPeterborough also invites other organisations to 

assist in the delivery of crime reduction activities. These 

are known as . This provides an 

opportunity for the voluntary sector to support the work 

of the partnership.

1
9



Linking with the Peterborough 

 ensures any policy or legislation changes impact 

on the wider community safety agenda. This joint 

approach will help protect those most vulnerable within 

our communities.

The partnership’s anti-social behaviour team focuses 

on providing support for victims. Reports of incidents 

have been steadily increasing and this reflects an 

increase in the public’s confidence in the team’s ability 

to resolve anti-social behaviour issues. 

In more than 65 per cent of cases where a perpetrator 

is warned about their behaviour, the anti-social 

behaviour stops. The majority (95 per cent) of signed 

acceptable behaviour contracts (ABCs) prevent further 

acts of anti-social behaviour occurring.

Hate crime reporting data is analysed by the 

partnership and reporting is encouraged via the police, 

a third party reporting scheme, Peterborough Racial 

Equality Council, Cross Keys Homes and Crimestoppers. 

An independent case review group ensures those 

organisations with responsibility for tackling hate crime 

are doing so in the most effective way possible.

The city council’s  

approach is designed to resolve root causes of issues 

affecting a community. 

We want to ensure communities have the opportunity - 

and are empowered - to action and influence services 

and change in their local neighbourhoods through 

.

have a key role in 

developing and monitoring the implementation of 

community action plans. 

Police neighbourhood panels and parish councils 

are strengthened with the growth of neighbourhood 

committees. 

5

Delivery of  
priority areas

4

Mental health 
The partnership acknowledges the role mental 

health plays as an overarching theme and we 

continue to ensure it is embedded across our 

priority areas. We will work to recommendations of 

Lord Bradley’s report: ‘review of people with mental 

health problems or learning disabilities in the 

criminal justice system.’

The most effective way to reduce crime in partnership 

is to tackle those most disproportionately responsible 

for the bulk of that crime. National figures have revealed 

approximately 10 per cent of offenders are responsible for 

up to 50 per cent of crime. 

A major reason for a reduction in crime in Peterborough 

is the partnership-led 

initiative. This initiative encourages:

This approach is strengthened further by a national 

pilot - a , which is a contract with 

the public sector in which it commits to pay for improved 

social outcomes. The Peterborough pilot is funded by 

investment raised through a social impact bond. A number 

of organisations deliver intervention work under the 

 brand to 3,000 short-sentenced men released 

from HMP Peterborough.

This approach offers released prisoners the opportunity 

to change their lives by focusing on the causes of their 

offending behaviour across a range of tried and tested 

pathways to reduce re-offending. 

Integrated offender management links up with other areas of 

work within the city to make longer-term change a realistic 

prospect. These include the , 

, the , 

the development of a city-wide approach to 

and the harm caused by .

2
0



6 7

Numbers of crimes  
recorded in Peterborough
April 2010 to March 2011

0-499

500-999

1000-1499

1500-1999

2000 plus

Central 4,713 1

East 1,568 2

Fletton 1,164 3

Bretton North 1,084 4

Orton with Hampton 1,063 5

Orton Longueville 1,016 6

Park 1,000 7

Ravensthorpe 932 8

Dogsthorpe 893 9

Orton Waterville 776 10

West 723 11

Paston 696 12

North 613 13

Stanground Central 599 14

Walton 451 15

Werrington North 410 16

Eye and Thorney 365 17

Glinton and Wittering 265 18

Werrington South 238 19

Bretton South 141 20

Newborough 129 21

Stanground East 113 22

Barnack 70 23

Northborough 50 24

© Crown copyright and database rights 2011 ordnance survey 100024236

2
1



Each area of priority has undergone an equalities 

impact assessment to ensure the work we are doing 

considers the impact of our migrant communities and 

the needs of vulnerable groups. 

Preventing violent extremism is addressed by 

a cohesion board that reports to  

. The chair of the 

cohesion board and its lead officer have a seat on the 

SaferPeterborough partnership board. 

The needs of victims and witnesses are vital in all the 

work the partnership undertakes. A key area of activity 

is to ensure communities receive feedback about the 

outcome of prosecutions in their area. 

Working with the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 

Probation Trust has enabled to 

be more visible, which demonstrates justice is not only 

being done but it is seen to be done. 

8 9

“Over the last 10 
years the number 
of people killed and 
seriously injured on 
Peterborough roads 
has reduced by 40  
per cent.”

Task and finish groups exist for the key priority 

areas of partnership business. Each group has a 

theme lead who is responsible for delivering on 

their business area and producing an action plan.  

The purpose of task and finish groups is to:

The SaferPeterborough partnership board fulfils the 

duties of a crime and disorder reduction partnership 

(CDRP) as set out within the Crime and Disorder Act.

The Police and Crime Act 2009 extends these 

responsibilities to include a duty to implement a 

strategy to reduce re-offending by adult and young 

offenders.

The board provides strategic direction for the work of 

the partnership by:

Task and finish groups

Performance

A monthly SaferPeterborough partnership performance 

meeting is responsible for monitoring progress against 

our priorities and reporting to the SaferPeterborough 

board. 

Partnership board
While our three priority areas cover a wide range of 

the city’s safety issues, work continues across other 

themes to ensure we continue to reduce crime.

Crime statistics and research show domestic abuse 

is heavily gender biased. Usually the perpetrator of 

a pattern of repeated assaults is male, while women 

experience the most serious physical and repeated 

assaults.

The SaferPeterborough partnership also recognises:

The partnership therefore aims to support anyone 

affected by domestic abuse.

Rape is associated with the most severe cases of 

domestic abuse and is a risk factor for domestic 

homicide. The partnership continues to support the 

work of the  (sexual assault referral 

centre) and maintain links with the police-led county-

wide multi-agency referral unit.

The partnership’s road safety priority is 

the combination of education, engineering, 

enforcement and encouragement activities 

focused on reducing the number of road traffic 

casualties.  

Over the last 10 years the number of people 

killed and seriously injured on Peterborough 

roads has reduced by 40 per cent. The road 

safety action plan prioritises areas of work with 

young drivers, speeding, motorcyclists, drink and 

drug driving, in-car safety and young people.

In 2010 more than 1,000 young people took 

part in road safety programmes delivered by the 

partnership. 

The road safety task and finish group runs 

under the authority of the Cambridgeshire and 

Peterborough Road Safety Partnership, which is 

responsible for the delivery of road safety across 

Peterborough and Cambridgeshire. 

2
2



The partnership is committed to ensuring any member 

of our community can access information about the 

partnership plan. 

We want to know what you have to say about the 

partnership’s priorities and how we deliver them.  

There are a number of ways you can talk to us.

Visit our website and 

feedback to us by clicking the ‘Have Your Say’ button 

on every page.

We are at the Peterborough Festival (Central Park) 

and Christmas lights switch-on events. High-ranking 

decision makers from the partnership attend these 

events and talk to you about crime and community 

safety concerns in your neighbourhoods, what you 

would like to see improved and what priorities you 

think we should focus on. 

You can view Face the People consultation results  

on   

or call and ask for the 

SaferPeterborough team, who will send you a copy.

10 11

Have your say
You can have your say on policing where you 

live and issues that need tackling in your 

neighbourhood so that action can be taken. 

Police are at these quarterly meetings and are 

joined by representatives from the partnership 

who help shape policing priorities for the area.  

Three priorities are chosen at the meetings for 

the neighbourhood policing team to tackle over 

a period of three months.

For details of your next panel meeting  

visit  

Victim Support offers free and 

confidential help to victims of 

crime and you do not have to 

report a crime to the police to 

get its help. Victim Support is 

not a government agency or 

part of the police.  

A witness service operates in 

every criminal court to help 

people called as witnesses. 

The Victim Supportline  

 gives 

immediate help over the 

phone and will put you in 

touch with the local team. 

Are you worried about what might happen to you if you talk to the 

police about a crime? Or are you scared to come forward and be 

a witness? 

You can pass on information to Crimestoppers without revealing 

your identity. 

Crimestoppers is not an emergency service and if you see a crime 

taking place you should call 999 to report it immediately. 

To give information anonymously to  

Crimestoppers call . 

Visit  or 

The SaferPeterborough 

partnership is working with the 

One Service to support short-

sentenced male prisoners through 

and beyond the prison gate by 

offering proactive and one-to-one 

support to address their needs 

and prevent re-offending.

The One Service is funded by social investment raised 

through a . The bond was announced 

by the justice secretary and is an innovative way to bring 

new money into the social sector. 

A social impact bond raises private investment to pay for 

services, which are delivered by social sector providers 

with a proven track record. Financial returns to investors 

are funded by the Ministry of Justice and are based on 

improved social outcomes. If outcomes do not improve, 

then investors will receive no recompense.

The social impact bond in Peterborough funds 

organisations working to reduce re-offending rates of 

short-sentence male prisoners leaving HMP Peterborough. 

The One Service is located at: Hayward House, Rightwell 

East, Bretton Centre, Bretton, Peterborough, PE3 8DX.

Neighbourhood Watch is a community 

initiative supported by the police but owned 

and run by local residents. 

It aims to help residents protect themselves 

and their property from crime by improving 

home security, greater vigilance, reporting 

of suspicious incidents to police and by 

fostering a community spirit.  

All watch schemes are different and are 

tailored to the make-up of the neighbourhood 

and local community.

For information call your neighbourhood 

policing team on 

2
3



12 13

For details of the next neighbourhood committee 

in your area, call and ask for 

the neighbourhood management team or email 

The seven neighbourhood committees are:

 - Northborough, Barnack, Glinton 

and Wittering, Newborough and Eye and Thorney 

wards

 - Werrington north, and 

Werrington south, plus Paston and Walton wards 

- Bretton north and Bretton 

south, plus West and Ravensthorpe wards

 - Central and North wards 

 - Dogsthorpe, East 

and Park wards

- 

Stanground Central, Stanground East, and 

Fletton and Woodston wards

 - Orton with Hampton, 

Orton Longueville and Orton Waterville wards

The Greater Peterborough 

Partnership (GPP) is 

the body that unites 

the many and varied 

organisations involved in 

the future development of 

Peterborough to enable 

them to work together with 

a common purpose and a shared vision: a bigger and 

better Peterborough. 

Partners working through The Greater Peterborough 

Partnership share a common goal to improve the 

quality of life in our communities and ensure everyone 

benefits from growth and opportunities.

To support this vision the partners have identified the 

following four areas of work as part of a 

, which are being prioritised in 

order to achieve the vision:

The SaferPeterborough partnership is committed to 

supporting these priorities and with particular focus 

on the 

vision. This priority has been created with the below 

deliverable outcomes:

…so that all 

communities and individuals are engaged and 

empowered and take their opportunities to shape the 

future of Peterborough.

…so that people of 

all ages and abilities can live, work and play in a 

prosperous and successful Peterborough without undue 

fear of crime.

…so that new 

communities are integrated into Peterborough and 

welcomed for the contribution they bring to our city and 

rural areas.

…so that we 

recognise, celebrate and take pride in Peterborough’s 

achievements, its diverse but shared culture and the 

exciting opportunities for leisure and relaxation.

Neighbourhood 
management
Neighbourhood management is designed to improve 

joint delivery of services from different organisations 

representing the SaferPeterborough partnership to our 

communities. 

The aim is to tailor delivery to the needs and priorities 

of individual neighbourhoods and make a local team 

responsible for ensuring those improvements and 

change are delivered. 

It requires effective participation by local people and 

organisations committed to working in partnership at 

a neighbourhood level.  

There are three neighbourhood managers who cover 

the city in three areas:

Each manager is supported by teams of officers 

within the city council neighbourhood services 

department whose roles include housing enforcement, 

environmental enforcement and pollution control. 

Neighbourhood managers also support the seven 

neighbourhood committees.

Neighbourhood committees (previously called 

neighbourhood councils) are made up of elected 

city council members along with representatives 

from parish councils, Cambridgeshire Constabulary, 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire Authority, 

registered social landlords and members of local 

community groups. 

The quarterly meetings represent a way of delegating 

decision-making to local areas, enabling communities 

to have a say about issues and how services are 

delivered in their area. 

 that include identified 

priorities and actions to address the needs of each 

community are created for each committee. 

The long-term effectiveness of neighbourhood 

committees relies on the number of residents 

attending them. The committees provide an 

opportunity for people to influence and shape their 

neighbourhoods.

2
4



If you have difficulty in understanding this booklet, we can arrange for 

it to be explained to you by an interpreter. Please call  

and ask for the 
25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Safer Peterborough 
Partnership Plan  

2011-14 
 

2013/14 Priorities 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2013 

  2 

 

 

 

SAFER PETERBOROUGH PARTNERSHIP 
 

COMMUNITY SAFETY PRIORITIES 2013 
 

(Part of the 2011-14 three-year Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan) 
 
 

 
Our Vision Statement 

 
Peterborough Together: reducing crime, building safe and confident communities 

 

 
 
1. Introduction 
 
The plan provides details of the Safer Peterborough Partnership’s priorities for 2013/14.  
 
This does not replace the three-year Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2011-2014, rather 
it should be read as an addendum representing a continuation of the three-year journey to reduce 
crime in our City. It is informed by the in-depth evidentially based 2012/13 Safer Peterborough 
Partnership Strategic Assessment. 
 
It continues with the three-year plan’s overall strategy and strengthens our approach in tackling the 
root causes of crime rather than reactively responding only to the symptoms. It also takes account 
of the impact of the country’s austerity measures and public service reforms.  
 
 
2. LegislativeFramework  
 
This plan is written in accordance with the responsibilities placed upon Community Safety 
Partnerships as set out within the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. It represents the annual refresh of 
the three-year plan as mandated within the above named Act. 
 
Full details of the legislative framework can be found within section two of the aforementioned 
three-year plan. 
 
 
3.  Three year priorities 
 
The three-year partnership plan identified three areas of overarching priority for its duration. These 
priorities will remain for the coming year; the Partnership will concentrate its resources on activity 
to support these priorities. The overarching priorities remain: 
 

• Reducing crime 

• Tackling anti-social behaviour and hate crime 

• Building stronger and more supportive communities 
 

28



Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2013 

  3 

The Partnership will continue to have only one measureable target: a 10 per cent reduction in 
victim based crime over the three year duration of the plan. 
 
We will deliver that target by prioritising a number of themes where the Partnership can add real 
value. Each of the these themes will be led by an identified member of the Partnership Board who 
will take responsibility for ensuring these themes make a positive contribution to the overall agenda 
of reducing crime and disorder. The Partnership will continue to support each of its statutory 
agencies in delivering their core functions. 
 
We will continue to relentlessly monitor our performance against our peers and, by developing 
more in-depth local analysis, we will ensure: 
 

• Continuous improvement; 

• Closing the gap on our peers; 

• Out-performing our most similar group’s average crime rates. 
 
A performance framework will support this single target and will continue to be reported to the 
Partnership Board on a monthly basis. 
 
 
4. Background 
 
This plan is informed by the 2012/13 Safer Peterborough Partnership Strategic Assessment which 
sets out a number of recommendations for continuing the fight against crime and continuing to 
make Peterborough a safer place. 
 
The potential impact of the country’s austerity measures, cuts to public sector budgets and welfare 
reform, coupled with significant changes to public service structures make 2013/14 an increasingly 
challenging year in maintaining our recent successes at reducing crime and disorder.    
 
2012/13 saw crime continue to fall in Peterborough. However, the pace of reduction has slowed 
considerably and a new plateau seems to have been reached in levels of recorded crime. It will 
require thought, imagination and strengthened resolve to move over this plateau and continue our 
downward trend. 
 
Peterborough ranks 48th highest nationally out of all 322 CSPs in England and Wales for crimes 
per thousand population. In 2009, when the Audit Commission raised significant concerns about 
crime levels in Peterborough, Peterborough was the 19th highest CSP in the country.  

 

 

29



Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2013 

  4 

The three-year plan is clear that the Partnership will be committed to tackling the underlying 
causes of crime and offending, but equally clear that those who continue to break the law will 
be targeted with the full weight of the criminal justice system. It remains the Partnership's view that 
this approach will bring sustainable reductions in crime by preventing crime and escalation in 
offending further 'upstream'.  
 
The Partnership will ensure that the direction of travel for community safety work in the City places 
the law abiding citizen at the heart of its approach and one of its priority work streams will reflect 
this. Work will be prioritised to ensure the City benefits from modern up-to-date services for victims. 
 
The Partnership will therefore continue to support our statutory agencies in delivering their own 
core function but will co-ordinate and lead on the work where it feels it can provide the biggest 
impact - that of prevention.  
 
Peterborough’s Community Safety Partnership benefits hugely from the positive engagement of 
the City’s largest social housing provider, Cross Key’s Homes; Sodexo Justice Services who 
operate the privately run HMP Peterborough; and representatives from the voluntary sector. All 
add valuable contributions to the crime and disorder debate. 
 
In addition, one of the country’s first criminal justice based ‘payment by results’ initiatives operates 
within the City under the working title of The One Service. The One Service has engaged fully at a 
strategic board level and has embedded their work at a practical operational level with existing 
criminal justice providers.  
 
The Partnership will continue to develop its multi-agency team approach to tackling the underlying 
causes of crime and it is these areas that will form the basis for continuing partnership activity for 
the coming twelve months.  
 
True and sustainable change comes from within and as such the Partnership will continue to 
support the work of the Council in integrating its approach to neighbourhood management with the 
community safety agenda to improve the quality of life in each area and the Partnership supports 
the view that improving quality of life and equality of opportunity for all will reduce crime and anti-
social behaviour. It fully embraces the broken window theory. 
 
The integration of public health within the local authority adds an extra and important dimension in 
helping to tackle the long term effects of crime, as well as playing its part in preventing the 
opportunity for offending behaviour to deteriorate; in particular this will include developing further 
links with mental health and learning disability professionals in order that the most vulnerable 
victims and offenders gain the support they need. 
 
The City continues to develop its Single Delivery Plan (SDP). The Partnership is committed to 
playing its part in moving the City forward by embracing the guiding principles of the SDP: 
 

• Outcomes not organisations 

• Tackling root causes 

• Being innovative 

• Embracing localism 
 

Programme six of the Single Delivery Plan is dedicated to reducing crime and the Safer 
Peterborough Partnership Board will continue to act as the Programme Board for this area of work. 
 
5. SAFER PETERBOROUGH PRIORITY WORKSTREAMS FOR 2013/14  
 
We will continue on our three year journey to reduce the number of victims of crime by supporting 
our partner agencies in delivery of their core roles and will prioritise our partnership work as 
follows: 
 
 

30



Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2013 

  5 

Vulnerable People and Groups 
 
The Partnership will ensure that vulnerable people and groups, and those at risk of becoming 
vulnerable, are identified and supported appropriately and not disproportionately suffer as victims 
of crime. 
 
This theme will be led by Wendi Ogle-Welbourn (Assistant Director, Children’s Services, PCC) and 
Adrian Chapman (Head of Neighbourhoods, PCC) 
 
We will do this by: 
 

• Prioritising a role within the partnership delivery team to lead and co-ordinate services for 
victims within the City. This role will link with the Cambridgeshire-wide work being 
conducted by the Office of the Policing and Crime Commissioner in readiness for the 
commissioning of victims services from 2014 onwards. 

 

• Prioritising work within the partnership delivery team as Connecting Families Programme 
‘Connectors’. Both of the above roles will work alongside the City’s Anti-Social Behaviour 
team ensuring that victims of ASB are included in such support work. 

 

• Ensuring the Partnership actively contribute to the work led by Adult Social Care 
(Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults) and Children’s Social Care (Safeguarding Children). 

 

• Ensuring that the Partnership have more visibility and active involvement in supporting the 
work around Child Sexual Exploitation by the appointment of a Domestic Abuse & Sexual 
Violence Co-ordinator who will also lead on this area of work for the partnership delivery 
team. 

 

• Developing  a solid understanding of the potential impact of welfare reform upon crime and 
the effect this may have on performance and regularly reporting this as part of the 
Partnership performance framework. 

 

• Ensuring that the Partnership strengthens its work and support of Neighbourhood Watch 
and other community groups and associations in order that those vulnerable in the 
community have greater support. 

 

• Forge greater operational links across the various programmes with colleagues from 
Children’s Services, in particular the Youth Offending Service. 

 

• Scrutinising shoplifting as a specific theme as an indicator of the potential impact of welfare 
reform. 

 

• Work together with businesses against crimes, including the Business Against Crime 
Scheme, to help develop and deliver the most effective strategies for gathering knowledge 
of shoplifting and its perpetrators.  

 

• Work together with soon to be established Credit Union and other charitable organisations 
to ultimately mitigate any increasing trends of shoplifting arising from the impact of welfare 
reform. 

 
 

Anti-Social Behaviour /Quality of Life and Road Safety Services 

 
The Partnership will prioritise work around ASB and quality of life issues within the City; cognisant 
of the ‘broken window theory’. Analysis has shown that there are clear correlations between ASB, 
criminal damage, alcohol related issues and deprivation; in addition looking more holistically at 
quality of life incidents, as opposed to looking at these issues in isolation, provides the opportunity 

31



Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2013 

  6 

to make real savings in terms of the time taken by different teams to address problems which may 
have been identified to more than one agency.  
 
This theme will be led by Paul Phillipson (Executive Director Operations, PCC) and Councillor 
Irene Walsh (Cabinet Member for Safety and Cohesion, PCC) 
 
We will do this by: 
 

• Developing a City-wide anti-social behaviour strategy and development plan led by the 
Board. 

 

• Continuing to develop robust case management of individual cases and an intelligence led 
approach to the identification of emerging trends. 

 

• Improve and develop data sharing as a priority.  
 

• The ASB task and finish group should be reinstated and be the lead group for developing 
the approach to ASB 

 

• ASB will be a standing performance item at monthly board meetings. 
 

• Continuing to deliver Road Safety Services within the Partnership delivery team to ensure 
that the numbers of those killed or seriously injured on the City’s roads are reduced.  

 

• Developing the City’s road safety services through a specific road safety task and finish 
plan that is reported to the Board on a quarterly basis or at whatever other intervals the 
Board feel necessary. 

 
 

Integrated Offender Management 
 
The Partnership will continue to support the view that a relatively small number of individuals have 
a disproportionate impact upon crime levels in the City and that targeted work with these 
individuals will have the biggest impact upon levels of recorded crime. Thus, the Partnership will 
continue to develop the integrated approach to offender management. 
 
This theme will be led by Mike Dyson (Assistant Chief Probation Officer, Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Probation Trust) 
 
We will do this by: 
 

• Integrated Offender Management will continue to have its own task and finish group 
reporting dually to the Cambridgeshire-wide CCJB IOM Strategic Group and to the SPP. 
The group will continue to work for opportunities for better case management tools and co-
location.   

 

• Ensuring continued work on the Performance Framework and more specifically on the 
Outcome Tool to assess which interventions are most effective and identify any gaps in 
meeting offender needs.  

 

• Developing further the work with JobCentre Plus to address the impact of the welfare 
reforms for the offenders, and the potential impact on their offending behaviour. 

 

• Supporting the work of the Probation Trust through proposed Government changes. 
 

• The Partnership should ensure that the work being developed to ensure an increase in 
capacity for access to mental health services for victims and offenders continues. 

32



Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2013 

  7 

 

• Performance of the Integrated Approach to Offender Management will be reported to the 
Board on a quarterly basis 

 
 

Domestic Abuse 
 
The Partnership will continue to prioritise, develop and improve the City’s response to Domestic 
Abuse. 
 
This theme will be led by Paul Phillipson (Executive Director Operations, PCC) supported by Karen 
Kibblewhite (Safer Peterborough Manager, Cutting Crime, PCC) 
 
We will do this by: 
 

• Developing a joined-up City-wide approach to domestic abuse through the Domestic Abuse 
Governance Board. 

 

• Increasing the capacity of the services in line with the Domestic Abuse Needs Audit 2012, 
and continue to review and develop services for both perpetrators, and for children and 
young people. 

 

• Prioritising funding to employ a Domestic Abuse & Sexual Violence Co-ordinator to lead 
this work. 

 

• Learning the lessons from any Domestic Homicide Reviews in order to ensure 
improvements in service delivery 

 

• Undertaking further work with all partners to ensure that data they collect in relation to 
domestic abuse is in a compatible format so a clear picture to the extent of the issue in 
Peterborough can be developed. 

 
 

Reducing the Harm caused by Substance Misuse 
 
The Partnership will continue to support the development and delivery of high class modern drug 
and alcohol services for the City based upon the latest Government drug and alcohol strategies. 
 
This theme will be led by Gary Goose (Safer Peterborough Strategic Manager and Chair JCG) 
supported by Karen Kibblewhite (Safer Peterborough Manager, Cutting Crime, PCC) 
 
We will do this by: 
 

• Continually monitoring the performance of drug and alcohol delivery services within the 
City; holding them and ourselves to account for performance. 

 

• Report back performance on a quarterly basis to the Board or at any other intervals they 
see fit. 

 

• Develop services further through a comprehensive treatment plan reported to and agreed 
by the Board. 

 

• Ensure that drug and alcohol providers are included in other complimentary harm reduction 
schemes such as IOM, ASB and Connecting Families 

 
 

 

33



Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2013 

  8 

 

Dwelling Burglary 
 
The Partnership will continue to prioritise burglary as a core indicator of levels of serious 
acquisitive crime. We will support work that drives down burglary further. 
 
This theme will be led by Dan Vajzovic (District Policing Commander) 
 
We will do this by: 
 

• Burglary offenders will continue to be prioritised within the Integrated Offender 
Management Scheme. 

 

• Burglary suspects will be tested where appropriate for drugs at point of entry into the 
criminal justice system. 

 

• The Partnership continuing to offer support as necessary to the police in support of the 
victims of burglary. 

 
 

Violent Crime linked to the Night-Time Economy. 

 
The City will continue to prioritise its response to violent crime and in particular violent crime linked 
to the night-time economy. 
 
This theme will be led by the City Council’s City Centre team. 
 
We will do this by: 
 

• Undertaking full analysis of violent crime to ensuring a proper understanding of the amount 
of violent crime linked to the night time economy, the use of the Police marker by the 
Constabulary to indicate violence in a licensed premise should be improved. 

 

• Taking the lead role in ensuring that violence in the City Centre and otherwise linked to the 
night-time economy is reduced. That activity across partners is balanced and that the City 
compliments the need to improve the vibrancy and economy of the City Centre with the 
need for people to be safe and feel safe. 

 
 

Racially Aggravated Offences and Hate Crime 
 
The Partnership will continue to recognise the special impact of racially aggravated offences and 
hate crime in all its forms.  
 
This theme will be led by M J Ladha (Chief Executive of Peterborough Racial Equality Council) 
 
We will do this by: 
 

• Prioritising funding to appoint a new role to lead on Anti-social behaviour/hate crime and 
victim services. 

 

• Carrying out further, in-depth analysis around all prejudicial incidents and crimes across the 
city to provide more detailed insight. Developing a more comprehensive performance 
framework that is reported back to the Board on a quarterly basis or at intervals decided by 
the Board. 

 

34



Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2013 

  9 

• Raising awareness of reporting – through Open Out Scheme/ effective network of reporting 
centres that in the victim’s perception can be trusted. 

 

• Improving our knowledge from schools. 
 
 

Sustainability, Performance, Value for Money and Communication 
 
The Partnership recognises the drivers that pose a potential threat to sustainability of current 
structures and will look to increase sustainability in order to maintain and improve the City’s safety 
and feelings of safety.  
 
This theme will by led by Nick Leader (Governor, HMP Peterborough) and Gary Goose (Safer 
Peterborough Strategic Manager) 
 
We will do this by: 
 

• Continuing to work together as a cohesive partnership; one that is flexible, adaptable and 
responsive to changing need and demand. 

 

• Looking at different operating models, including greater co-operation with other areas; in 
order maintain sustainability of service in the years ahead. 

 

• Developing the partnership performance framework to include all available data and that 
where there are gaps in local data the Partnership influences closure of those gaps. 

 

• The Partnership should continue to fund the specific partnership analyst post. 
 
 
6. CONCLUSION 
 
In conclusion, this plan sets out the Safer Peterborough Partnership’s desire to make real and long 
lasting positive improvements to the safety and perceptions of safety within our City. It is innovative 
in that it does not simply concentrate on traditional categories of crime; but does that in the 
knowledge that this approach is already making real change in the city and in with belief in the 
City’s preventative agenda. 

 

35



36

This page is intentionally left blank



P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3

(d
a
ta
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
O
c
to
b
e
r)

G
a
ry
 G
o
o
s
e

37



S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

T
h
e
 S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 w
il
l 
a
im
 

to
 i
ll
u
s
tr
a
te
:

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
: 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
’s
 m

o
n
th
 o
n
 m

o
n
th
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
c
ri
m
e
, 
w
it
h
 

a
 v
ie
w
 t
o
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o
r 
e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 1
0
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
fo
r 
2
0
1
4

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
2
: 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
’s
 r
a
te
 o
f 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r 

3
2
9
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 i
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
n
d
 W

a
le
s
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
3
: 
C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 t
h
a
t 
a
ff
e
c
t 
c
it
iz
e
n
’s
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e

38



In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

1
0
%
 T
a
rg
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

B
a
s
e
li
n
e

H
IG
H
 

R
IS
K

L
O
W
 

R
IS
K

M
O
N
T
H
L
Y
 C
H
A
N
G
E
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W

•
A
S
B
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
d
ro
p
 

fr
o
m
 9
3
3
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
to
 9
1
4
 i
n
 

O
c
to
b
e
r,
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 1
2
 m
o
n
th
 

ro
lli
n
g
 f
ig
u
re
s
 s
h
o
w
e
d
 a
 s
lig
h
t 

o
v
e
ra
ll 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 b
y
 0
.3
%
.

•
V
e
h
ic
le
 C
ri
m
e
 (
e
x
c
. 

In
te
rf
e
re
n
c
e
) 
re
c
o
rd
e
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
w
e
s
t 

m
o
n
th
ly
 c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
8
2
 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
ts
 l
o
w
e
s
t 

1
2
 m
o
n
th
 r
o
lli
n
g
 c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
1
3
.8
%
 

s
in
c
e
 O
c
t-
1
2
.

•
T
h
e
ft
 f
ro
m
 P
e
rs
o
n
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
 

lo
w
e
r 
th
a
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
o
n
th
 (
2
6
),
 

w
h
ic
h
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w
e
s
t 
1
2
 

m
o
n
th
 r
o
lli
n
g
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
3
4
.8
 a
b
o
v
e
 

th
e
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 s
in
c
e
 J
a
n
-1
3
 (
3
3
.9
).

•
T
h
e
 C
o
s
t 
o
f 
C
ri
m
e
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
d
e
c
lin
e
d
 t
o
 1
7
.9
%
 

b
e
lo
w
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
; 
a
 r
e
c
o
rd
 l
o
w
.

•
O
c
to
b
e
r 
s
a
w
 a
 d
e
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
T
o
ta
l 
C
ri
m
e
s
, 
fr
o
m
 

1
,2
0
5
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
to
 1
,1
6
0
 i
n
 

O
c
to
b
e
r;
 a
 m
o
n
th
 o
n
 m
o
n
th
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
3
.9
%
 a
n
d
 1
2
 m
o
n
th
 

ro
lli
n
g
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 s
tr
e
tc
h
in
g
 a
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
1
.2
%
 t
o
 2
2
.6
%
 b
e
lo
w
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
.

39



In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

Y
e
a
r 
1

Y
e
a
r 
2

Y
e
a
r 
3

=
 1
,7
8
7
 f
e
w
e
r 

v
ic
ti
m
s
 t
h
a
n
 

ta
rg
e
t 
 

=
 3
,1
3
4
 f
e
w
e
r 

v
ic
ti
m
s
 s
in
c
e
 

s
ta
rt
.

40



M
ic
ro
b
e
a
t 
s
u
m
m
a
ry

O
p
 C
a
n
D
o

•
C

ri
m

e
: 

R
e

co
rd

e
d

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

m
o

n
th

ly
 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 t
o

 1
0

2
 a

ft
e

r 
a

 p
e

a
k
 o

f 
1

5
8

 in
 

A
u

g
u

st
-1

3
. 

A
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
, 

T
o

ta
l 
C

ri
m

e
 i
s 

n
o

w
 9

.7
%

 b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 b

a
se

li
n

e
.

•
Q

o
L:

 R
e

co
rd

e
d

 a
 r

e
co

rd
 h

ig
h

 o
f 

2
9

8
, 

a
lm

o
st

 e
n

ti
re

ly
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 r

a
p

id
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
 

in
 F

ly
ti

p
p

in
g

 C
le

a
n

u
p

s.

•
A

S
B

: 
R

e
co

rd
e

d
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
m

o
n

th
ly

 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 t
o

 8
8

 f
ro

m
 a

 p
e

a
k
 i
n

 o
f 

1
3

6
 in

 

Ju
ly

-1
3

. 
T

h
e

 1
2

 m
o

n
th

 r
o

ll
in

g
 t

o
ta

l 
is

 

fl
u

ct
u

a
ti

n
g

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 b
a

se
li

n
e

.

W
W
R
A
P

•
C

ri
m

e
: 

M
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 a

 l
o

w
 T

o
ta

l 

C
ri

m
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

5
5

 a
n

d
 h

a
s 

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
 f

a
ll

e
n

 t
o

 1
1

.5
%

 b
e

lo
w

 

th
e

 b
a

se
li

n
e

.

•Q
o
L
: 
R
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
 r
e
c
o
rd
 h
ig
h
 o
f 

2
0
9
, 
a
lm
o
s
t 
e
n
ti
re
ly
 d
u
e
 t
o
 a
 

ra
p
id
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 F
ly
ti
p
p
in
g
 

C
le
a
n
u
p
s
.

•
A

S
B

: 
R

e
co

rd
e

d
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 l
o

w
 

a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

A
S

B
 a

s 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s 

m
o

n
th

 (
4

8
),

 b
u

t 
fe

ll
 t

o
 1

.3
%

 b
e

lo
w

 

th
e

 b
a

se
li

n
e

.

H
A
L
O

•
C

ri
m

e
: 

R
e

co
rd

e
d

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 l

o
w

e
st

 c
o

u
n

ts
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
C

ri
m

e
 (

6
2

) 
a

n
d

is
 n

o
w

 a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
 

1
4

.9
%

 b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 b

a
se

li
n

e
.

•Q
o
L
: 
R
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
 p
e
n
u
lt
im
a
te
 h
ig
h
 o
f 
1
2
0
, 
a
lm
o
s
t 
e
n
ti
re
ly
 d
u
e
 t
o
 a
 r
a
p
id
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 F
ly
ti
p
p
in
g
 C
le
a
n
u
p
s
.

•
A

S
B

: 
R

e
co

rd
e

d
 a

 v
e

ry
 l

o
w

 c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
A

S
B

 (
5

5
) 

-
a

lm
o

st
 h

a
lf

 o
f 

a
 p

e
a

k
 i

n
 A

u
g

u
st

-1
3

 (
1

0
3

) 
-

a
n

d
 i
s 

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
 o

n
ly

 1
.9

%
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 b

a
se

li
n

e
.

C
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e

•
C

ri
m

e
: 

M
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 a

 s
im

il
a

r 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
to

 l
a

st
 m

o
n

th
 (

1
9

5
) 

a
n

d
 d

ro
p

p
e

d
 t

o
 

7
.4

%
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e

 b
a

se
li

n
e

.

•
Q

o
L:

 R
e

co
rd

e
d

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

g
ra

d
u

a
l 
in

cr
e

a
se

 t
o

 5
2

 a
n

d
 i
s 

n
o

w
 1

0
.6

%
 a

b
o

v
e

 

th
e

 b
a

se
li

n
e

.

•
A

S
B

: 
D

ro
p

p
e

d
 t

o
 7

3
 a

ft
e

r 
A

u
g

u
st

-1
3

's
 p

e
a

k
 o

f 
1

0
6

, 
y
e

t 
is

 s
ti

ll
 1

4
.4

%
 a

b
o

v
e

 

th
e

 b
a

se
li

n
e

.

41



42

This page is intentionally left blank



STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 

15 JANUARY 2014 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Strategic Manager: Safer and Stronger Peterborough                                        
 
Contact Officer(s) – Gary Goose 
Contact Details – 863780 
 

FLY-TIPPING PROSECUTIONS  
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This report is to update the Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee on ‘Fly-

tipping’ prosecutions undertaken by the authority.   
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 Members are asked to note the level of activity in relation to fly-tipping and associated offences 
and the approach taken by the council to ensure the City maintains a clean environment. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
 

3.1 The Sustainable Community Strategy aims to deliver a bigger and better Peterborough, through 
improving the quality of life for all. Tackling all forms of environmental crime helps to establish a 
clean and safe city, thereby helping to improve quality of life within our communities. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 Fly tipping is the term to describe the act of the illegal dumping of rubbish (household, 
commercial or industrial). The most common fly-tipped waste is household waste.  The type of 
waste has in the past included a single plastic bag, larger items such as furniture, white goods 
such as fridges and freezers, tyres, a bathroom suite and hazardous waste such as oil drums.  
Hazardous or not, the dumping of waste is illegal and comes with a serious cost to the 
offender.  Fly tippers if found guilty can be fined up to £50,000 in a Magistrates’ Court, face 
unlimited fines in the Crown Court, as well as Community Punishment Orders or prison 
sentences of up to 5 years. The relevant legislation is Section 33 of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990.  
 

5. 
 
5.1 
 
5.1.1 
 
 
 
5.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

KEY ISSUES 
 
Evidence required to undertake a prosecution 
  
As a prosecuting authority the Council rely on the Criminal Justice System to deal with fly-
tipping which imposes a much higher burden of proof, than being “beyond all reasonable 
doubt”.   
 
Fly tipping can be problematic to prosecute given the need to prove who actually fly-tipped the 
waste. To establish an offence and to consider a prosecution it is important that the 
investigating officer has obtained good quality evidence of the alleged offender. It does not 
necessarily follow that the details found within the waste are of the person who physically 
dumped the waste. Contemporaneous notes about the fly-tipping incident, timed and dated 
photographs, CCTV footage, if available, witnesses able to explain clearly what they have seen, 
and lawfully conducted and recorded interviews are all of critical importance.   
  

43



 
 
5.2 
 
5.2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2.2 
 
 
 
 
5.2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2.4 
 
 
5.3 
 
5.3.1 
 
 
 
 
5.3.2 
 
 
 
 
5.3.3 
 

 
 
The current process for initiating prosecution of fly-tippers 
  
The process for prosecuting fly-tippers complies with the Code for Crown Prosecutors issued by 
the Crown Prosecution Service who are the principle public prosecution service for England and 
Wales.  Officers gather evidence and where possible seek to rectify evidential weaknesses.  
Statutory defences will also be taken into consideration.  For clarity the term ‘statutory defence’ 
in this case constitutes the following: 
 

o That the person took all reasonable precautions and exercised all due diligence 
to avoid the commission of an offence             OR 

 
o The acts alleged to constitute the contravention were done in an emergency in 
order to avoid danger to the public and that, as soon as reasonably practicable 
after they were done, particulars of them were furnished to the waste regulation 
authority in whose area the treatment or disposal of the waste too place. 

 
 
The Solicitor to the Council and through delegated powers to appointed Lawyers of the 
Authority  will objectively assess the evidence, taking a view as to whether it can be used and 
whether it can be relied upon and also any information put forward by the alleged offender 
before deciding to proceed with a prosecution file.   
 
Accordingly, where there is sufficient evidence to justify a prosecution or to offer an out of Court 
sanction, the Council must go on to consider whether it is in the public interest to launch a 
prosecution. The “considerations” are those relating to the prescriptive Public Interest Test and 
Threshold Test contained within the Code for Crown Prosecutors.  In every case where there is 
sufficient evidence to justify a prosecution, prosecutors must go on to consider whether a 
prosecution is required in the public interest.  Considerations include, seriousness, level of 
culpability, mental and/or ill health, harm to the victim (although we do not act for the victim but 
overall for the good of the public), age of defendant (under 18), impact on the community, 
protection of a source.  
 
 
Only when all the aforementioned issues have been considered can a move to prosecution by 
way of summons at the Magistrates Court commence. 
  
Prosecution v caution v warning letter 
  
The City Council operates an Enforcement Policy approved by the Legal Team, which complies 
with the Regulatory Compliance Code, and encompasses provisions within the Code for Crown 
Prosecutions. The Policy ensures that the appropriate sanction is applied and consequently a 
proportionate approach is taken.    
 
As a public prosecutor the Council will only commence a prosecution when it is satisfied that 
there is a “realistic prospect of conviction” on the available evidence and the public interest test 
has been satisfied. If the case does not pass this evidential test it will not go ahead, no matter 
how important or serious the allegation may be. 
  
In some circumstances it may be appropriate to review cases with a view to seeking alternative 
sanctions to prosecution including a written warning, clear up costs and offering a caution.  The 
offer of a caution which is accepted and complied with takes the place of a prosecution.  Where 
the opportunity to accept a caution is not accepted by the alleged offender the Council will seek 
to prosecute for the original offence. In general, the guidance from the Magistrates Association 
is that the courts view offences committed for commercial gain more seriously than those 
committed by individuals without any wider profit motive.  There is a trend for the Court to hand 
down conditional and sometimes absolute discharges for first time fly-tipping offenders 
particularly where there are no aggravating features and guilt is admitted at interview.  In these 

44



circumstances it is appropriate for a prosecuting authority to offer a caution or a fixed penalty 
notice in the first instance. 

  
6. CURRENT PERFORMANCE 

 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6.4 
 
 
 
 
6.5 
 

Investigations into allegations of fly-tipping are undertaken by the council’s neighbourhood 
environmental enforcement team (NEOs). This team comprises a total of five members of staff. 
At the beginning of December 2013 a change of internal structure has led to the team now 
reporting direct to the Safer Peterborough Strategy Manager. 
 
The NEOs role combines both enforcement and problem solving elements. The information 
provided at 5) above outlines why statistics relating to solely categories entitled ‘fly-tipping’ 
should be read in the context of the wide interpretation that can be attributed to the term in 
much the same way as the term ‘anti-social behaviour’ means many things to many different 
people. 
 
The Council are required to forward figures to Government in relation to allegations of fly-
tipping. The most recent figures show the following for the first six months of this current 
financial year: 
 

• 3806 registered issues of fly-tipping and associated offences 

• 1097 investigations for fly-tipping and associated offences 

• 1839 disposal by fixed penalty notice 

• 76 warning letters were issues 

• 7 cautions were issued 

• 47 prosecutions were instigated. 
 
These figures indicate an extremely high level of activity by the NEOs, a proportionate level of 
warnings and cautions where thought to be appropriate but also a resolve to prosecute those 
who fail to pay fixed penalty notices or where a fixed penalty notice is not thought to be an 
appropriate form of disposal. 
 
The most up to date figures will be forwarded prior to the meeting. 
  

  
  
7. NEXT STEPS 

 
7.1 For the scrutiny committee to note the level of activity in relation to fly-tipping and associated 

offences and the proportionate levels of sanction imposed. 
 

8. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

8.1 None 
 

9. APPENDICES 
 

9.1  None 
 

  

45



46

This page is intentionally left blank



STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 

15 JANUARY 2014 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Strategic Partnerships Manager – Resources Directorate                                    
 
Contact Officer(s) – Dominic Hudson, Strategic Partnerships Manager 
Contact Details - Email: dominic.hudson@peterborough.gov.uk  Telephone: 01733 452384 
 

A STRATEGY FOR CULTURE, RECREATION & THE ARTS FOR PETERBOROUGH 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 To engage Committee members on the approach we are taking to – and framework for – a new 

Strategy for Culture, Recreation and the Arts for Peterborough. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 That Members note this report and comment on it.    
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 Culture and leisure contribute to the following priorities in the Sustainable Community Strategy:- 
- Creating opportunities – tackling inequalities; 
- Creating strong and supportive communities; and 
- Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth. 

 
4. BACKGROUND 

 
4.1 
 
 
 

The Council is building a new strategy for culture, recreation and the arts. Whilst the strategy will be 

a council document, the intention is that it is a strategy for the whole of Peterborough. Culture and 

leisure are long-established priorities of the Council but it is right that – five years on from the 

publication of the last strategy – we take a fresh look at our approach and our priorities.    

5. A STRATEGY FOR CULTURE, RECREATION AND THE ARTS FOR PETERBOROUGH 
 

5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
Peterborough City Council is developing a new strategy for culture, recreation and the arts1 in the 
city, in consultation with partner organisations and stakeholders. The Cabinet Adviser for Culture, 
Cllr Graham Casey, has convened a steering group and met with a wide range of interested parties 
to inform the development of the strategy. Key points that have been made by consultees about the 
strategy include: 
  

• Whilst it will be a Council document, it needs to be a strategy for the City; 

• It should be positive – this is an important opportunity to recognise and celebrate how much 

Peterborough has to offer;  

• It should be ambitious – and show how we will measure what we are trying to achieve; 

• It should identify and commit to specific priorities – things we can do and/or support that 

will make a real difference quickly.  

                                                
1
 This strategy does not address sport specifically, which will be the subject of further work in the coming year 

47



5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WHAT WILL THE STRATEGY SAY?  

The strategy will:  

a) Reaffirm the Council’s vision and priorities for Peterborough 

i. Peterborough City Council’s vision is to create a bigger and better 

Peterborough that grows the right way, and through truly sustainable 

development and growth: 

§ Improves the quality of life of all its people and communities, and 
ensures that all communities benefit from growth and the opportunities 
it brings 

 
§ Creates a truly sustainable Peterborough, the urban centre of a 

thriving sub-regional community of villages and market towns, a 
healthy, safe and exciting place to live, work and visit, famous as the 
environment capital of the UK 

 
ii. and the Council’s priorities are: 

 

b) Recognise and celebrate the very wide range of both cultural and leisure 

opportunities that exist in the city 

iii. There is already a wealth of culture and leisure activity in the city – these are 

summarised visually at Annex 1 – that we believe create increasingly firm 

foundations for the future in terms of the appropriateness and accessibility of 

culture and leisure opportunities.  

iv. In recent years new approaches have given new impetus to Peterborough’s 

cultural life, in the form of: 

• The creation of Vivacity. Vivacity manage the City Council’s, arts, 
heritage, library and sports services, provide expert knowledge and 
are our primary delivery partners.  
 

• A range of National Portfolio organisations and established arts 
organisations (Eastern Angles, Britten Sinfonia, NNF (Bridge 
Organisation), NIE, Metal and Seachange Arts) have growing 
relationships that are embedded in the city, and they are well informed 
in the challenges of breaking new ground in Peterborough. 
 

• Metal, one of the City’s National Portfolio organisations, is already 
producing a programme to develop local artists and to map the current 
arts activity in the City. Metal have also produced, with City Council 
funding, a new website for culture and events across Peterborough. 
The website, Idea1, is open to anyone who wants to promote or list 
events in the city, making it a new one stop shop for finding out what's 
happening today, tomorrow or this month in Peterborough.  
 

• The City has produced a Heritage ambition and action plan, which has 
been adopted by the City Council and all the City’s Heritage 

48



attractions and groups. The Heritage ambition will sit within the 
Cultural strategy.  
 

• The City has achieved, for the first time, European funding for culture, 
becoming part of the ZEPA2 consortium.  This aims to develop the 
sustainability of the arts festival, making links with Europe and 
produce a high-quality format, which will attract investment. 

 

• Peterborough has also been successful in attracting funding for a 
national project, Creative People and places, which will see local 
groups organising themselves to champion culture. Creative people 
and places is a national funded project, which will set up networks and 
micro-funding opportunities to generate new opportunities for the City. 

 

• The City’s Library and Archive services have achieved national 
recognition for a three year project, Forty Years On, which is an 
ambitious and exciting three year programme of theatre, oral history 
and archive work. Led by Eastern Angles Theatre Company and the 
Peterborough Archives Service, it will explore, archive and 
creatively interpret forty years of Peterborough history from 1968 to 
2008. The project has so far worked with over 100 volunteers.  

 

c) Articulate the positive and vital contribution that culture and leisure make to the City’s 

overarching priorities 

v. Adapting the Arts Council’s view of the multiple, overlapping benefits of 

culture we see how a vibrant cultural offer has a positive impact on all of our 

priorities: 

  

 

d) Describe how we want to improve the quality of culture, recreation and the arts 

vi. In the short term (within five years) for Peterborough to be assessed by the 

49



Arts Council England to be a better performing City moving from its current 
position in the bottom 10 % of the country for infrastructure and participation 
in cultural activities; 

vii. The longer term ambition is to get to a place, over a generation, where 
Peterborough can compete for City of Culture status – to bring local, regional, 
national and international interest in and acclaim for the city. 

Does the Committee support these ambitions? 

 
e) Commit to specific priorities that we believe will make a positive difference to the 

culture, recreation and arts landscape of the city: 

viii. To celebrate our diversity – at one time, in one place 

ix. To increase participation in cultural and recreational activities 

x. To create spaces(s) for culture – using the public realm and our green open 

spaces to ensure there are ‘places to go and things to do’ 

xi. To develop, promote and retain local talent 

xii. To raise the city’s profile through culture 

xiii. To refresh, restate and keep under review the Vivacity role in support of 

culture, recreation and the arts through the annual business plan process. 

Does the Committee support these priorities?  

 
  
6. IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1 As budgets become more constrained, the Council will need to ensure the very best possible return 

on any continuing investment in discretionary services. Vivacity, as an independent organisation, 
needs to continue to explore other business opportunities to expand its services in the interests of 
its own viability in addition to the services provided to the Council. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 This report has been developed with the Cabinet Adviser for Culture and Recreation and discussed 
with a wide range of stakeholders, including Vivacity Trustees and officers, arts organisations and 
individuals from across the city.  
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 
8.1   
 

 
The Council will begin drafting the full strategy along the lines above, considering comments made 
by the Committee and the outcome of discussions in relation to the 2014-15 Vivacity business plan.  
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

9.1 Existing Council strategies, the Funding and Management Agreement dated 1 May 2010 between 
the Council and Vivacity, and published documents by the Arts Council. 
  

10. APPENDICES 
 

10.1 There is one appendix to this report – providing a snapshot of culture, recreation and arts activity in 
the city now.   

 
 
 

50



APPENDIX ONE – CULTURE, RECREATION AND THE ARTS NOW 
 
Peterborough City Council activity  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

51



Vivacity: activity 

 

Heritage 
Education 

Heritage 
Workshops 

Heritage 
Open 
days 

52



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Key 
Youth 
Theatre 

Theatre 
summer 
school 

53



 
3rd Sector activity 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 

54



STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

Agenda Item No. 8 

15 JANUARY 2014 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Head of Legal Services 
 
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny 
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This is a regular report to the Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee outlining 

the content of the Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan of Key Decisions is attached at Appendix 1.  The Plan 
contains those key decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the Cabinet or 
individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new key decisions to be taken after 24 January 
2014. 
 

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan of Key Decisions provides the Committee with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to 
request further information. 
 

3.3 If the Committee wished to examine any of the key decisions, consideration would need to be 
given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme. 
 

3.4 
 

As the Forward Plan is published fortnightly any version of the Forward Plan published after 
dispatch of this agenda will be tabled at the meeting. 
 

4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan of Key 
Decisions. 
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
 None 

 
6. APPENDICES 

 
 Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of  Key Decisions 
 
 

55



56

This page is intentionally left blank



 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

 
 

P
E

T
E

R
B

O
R

O
U

G
H

 C
IT

Y
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

’S
 F

O
R

W
A

R
D

 P
L

A
N

 
O

F
 K

E
Y

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 

 
   

P
U
B
L
IS
H
E
D
: 
 2
7
 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
3
 

 

57



F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 P

L
A

N
 O

F
 K

E
Y

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 

A
B

 

In
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
in
g
 2
8
 d
a
y
s
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 d
a
te
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
is
 P
la
n
, 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' o
n
 t
h
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
 K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 i
n
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 

£
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 a
n
d
/o
r 
h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 If
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r,
 t
h
e
 n
a
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
is
 s
h
o
w
n
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
, 
in
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r’
s
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
. 
If
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t,
 i
t’
s
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
re
 a
s
 l
is
te
d
 b
e
lo
w
: 

C
llr
 C
e
re
s
te
 (
L
e
a
d
e
r)
; 
C
llr
 E
ls
e
y
; 
C
llr
 F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
; 
C
llr
 H
o
ld
ic
h
 (
D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r)
; 
C
llr
 N
o
rt
h
; 
C
llr
 S
e
a
to
n
; 
C
llr
 S
c
o
tt
; 
a
n
d
 C
llr
 W

a
ls
h
. 
 

 T
h
is
 P
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 m
o
n
th
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 o
n
 a
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 
 E
a
c
h
 n
e
w
 P
la
n
 

s
u
p
e
rs
e
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 i
te
m
s
 m

a
y
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
v
e
r 
in
to
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 P
la
n
s
. 
 A
n
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 a
t 
th
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
e
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 G
e
m
m
a
 G
e
o
rg
e
, 
S
e
n
io
r 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 

T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
8
7
0
2
 3
8
8
0
3
9
).
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
ly
, 
y
o
u
 c
a
n
 s
u
b
m
it
 y
o
u
r 
v
ie
w
s
 v
ia
 e
-m

a
il 
to
 g
e
m
m
a
.g
e
o
rg
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 

te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
2
6
8
. 

 W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
t 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 l
is
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 P
la
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
p
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 m
e
d
ia
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
, 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

s
o
m
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
ta
in
s
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l,
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
lly
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 o
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 m
a
y
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
, 
a
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
a
re
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
 t
h
is
 a
p
p
lie
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
is
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
A
 f
o
rm

a
l 
n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
, 

o
r 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
it
, 
in
 p
ri
v
a
te
, 
w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 2
8
 c
le
a
r 
d
a
y
s
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
n
y
 p
ri
v
a
te
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
) 

(M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
) 
(E
n
g
la
n
d
) 
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 2
0
1
2
. 
 

 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
v
it
e
s
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 (
u
n
le
s
s
 a
 n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
in
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
).
 

 Y
o
u
 a
re
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 a
n
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
, 
o
r 
o
b
ta
in
 e
x
tr
a
c
ts
 f
ro
m
 a
n
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 

p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
n
y
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 d
is
c
lo
s
u
re
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 m
a
y
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 f
o
r 

p
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
 o
r 
p
o
s
ta
g
e
. 
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 f
ro
m
 G
e
m
m
a
 G
e
o
rg
e
, 

S
e
n
io
r 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
8
7
0
2
 3
8
8
0
3
9
),
 e
-m

a
il 
to
 

g
e
m
m
a
.g
e
o
rg
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
2
6
8
. 
F
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 a
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 

w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
. 
 

 A
ll 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
: 
w
w
w
.p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
/e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 
 I
f 
y
o
u
 w
is
h
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 P
la
n
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 s
u
b
m
it
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 
 F
o
r 
y
o
u
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
th
e
 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 P
la
n
. 

 

58



K
E

Y
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 F
R

O
M

 2
4

 J
A

N
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1

4
 

 K
E

Y
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 

D
E

C
IS

IO
N

 
M

A
K

E
R

 
 

D
A

T
E

 
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 

E
X

P
E

C
T

E
D

 

M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
O

P
E

N
 T

O
 

P
U

B
L

IC
 

R
E

L
E

V
A

N
T

  
S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
 

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
 D

E
T

A
IL

S
 /

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 A

U
T

H
O

R
S

 
D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
S

 
R

E
L

E
V

A
N

T
 T

O
 

T
H

E
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 

S
U

B
M

IT
T

E
D

 T
O

 
T

H
E

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

 
M

A
K

E
R

 (
IF

 A
N

Y
 

O
T

H
E

R
 T

H
A

N
 

P
U

B
L

IC
 R

E
P

O
R

T
) 

L
o

c
a
l 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
W

o
rk

s
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 -

 
K

E
Y

/2
4
J

A
N

/0
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
W
o
rk
s
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

G
r.

 
U

ff
. 
M

a
rc

o
 

C
e
re

s
te

 
L

e
a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 a
n

d
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

G
ro

w
th

, 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
P

la
n

n
in

g
, 

H
o

u
s
in

g
, 

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

E
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

J
a
n

u
a
ry

/ 
F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 
2
0
1
4
 

N
/A

 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

M
a
rk
 S
p
e
e
d
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

T
e
a
m
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 3
1
7
4
7
1
 

m
a
rk
.s
p
e
e
d
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

A
w

a
rd

 -
 

K
E

Y
/2

4
J

A
N

/0
2
 

T
o
 s
e
e
k
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 

a
w
a
rd
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv
ic
e
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

W
a
y
n

e
 

F
it

z
g

e
ra

ld
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
 

J
a
n

u
a
ry

/ 
F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 
2
0
1
4
 

N
/A

 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

fo
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

Is
s
u
e
s
. 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
0
6
 

n
ic
k
.b
la
k
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

59



 

 A
p

p
ro

v
a
l 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

s
s
e
t 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
G

la
d

s
to

n
e
 

P
a
rk

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

C
e
n

tr
e
 -

 
K

E
Y

/2
4
J

A
N

/0
3
 

A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 e
n
te
r 
in
to
 a
 f
u
ll 

re
p
a
ir
in
g
 l
e
a
s
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 

u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
t 

T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

D
a
v
id

 
S

e
a
to

n
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

 

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 
2
0
1
4
 

N
/A

 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

E
m
m
a
 E
v
e
ri
tt
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
6
6
0
 

e
m
m
a
.e
v
e
ri
tt
@
p
e
te
rb
o
r

o
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
L

Y
 A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
D

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

's
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 S

a
le

 o
f 

D
ic

k
e
n

s
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 -
 K

E
Y

/0
3
J
U

L
/1

1
 

T
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
in
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 S
o
lic
it
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
–
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
to
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
le
 o
f 

D
ic
k
e
n
s
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 
P
a
rk
. 
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

D
a
v
id

 
S

e
a
to

n
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

 

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
4
 

N
/A

 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r,
 W

a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
, 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 &
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
o
d
g
s
o
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
5
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.h
o
d
g
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
r

b
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

60



 

 C
a
re

 a
n

d
 R

e
p

a
ir

 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

K
E

Y
/1

8
D

E
C

1
2
/0

1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 a
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 

o
f 
ra
te
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 g
ra
n
t 

w
o
rk
, 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 t
o
ile
t 
a
n
d
 w
a
s
h
in
g
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 

w
o
rk
 i
n
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

N
ig

e
l 

N
o

rt
h

 
C

a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
a
n

d
 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 

 

B
e
tw

e
e
n

  
2
 

N
o

v
 2

0
1
3
 

a
n

d
 3

0
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

N
/A

 
S
tr
o
n
g
 a
n
d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 

  

R
u
s
s
 C
a
rr
 

C
a
re
 &
 R
e
p
a
ir
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
6
4
 

ru
s
s
.c
a
rr
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

S
a
le

 o
f 

C
ra

ig
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 -
 

K
E

Y
/2

5
M

A
R

1
3
/0

1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
le
 o
f 

la
n
d
 k
n
o
w
n
 a
s
 C
ra
ig
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 
P
a
rk
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

D
a
v
id

 
S

e
a
to

n
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

 

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
4
 

N
/A

 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 

  

D
a
v
id
 G
ra
y
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
ts
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
1
 

d
a
v
id
.g
ra
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

C
la

re
 L

o
d

g
e
 -

 
K

E
Y

/2
2

A
U

G
1
3
/0

1
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

S
h

e
il

a
 S

c
o

tt
 

O
B

E
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 

M
a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

N
/A

 
C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

- 
A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb

o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

61



 

 C
it

y
 C

o
ll

e
g

e
 

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
 P

ro
je

c
t 

- 
K

E
Y

/2
0
S

E
P

1
3
/0

3
 

U
s
in
g
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
d
in
g
 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 g
ra
n
t 
to
 c
re
a
te
 a
 

d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
, 
c
u
s
to
m
is
e
d
 

s
p
a
c
e
 f
o
r 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 a
g
e
d
 

1
6
-1
9
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

J
o

h
n

 
H

o
ld

ic
h

 O
B

E
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

, 
S

k
il

ls
 a

n
d

 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

 

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
4
 

N
/A

 
C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
r

o
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 

P
o

li
c
y
 -

 
K

E
Y

/0
4
O

C
T

1
3
/0

2
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 

a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
. 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

 
F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 
2
0
1
4
 

Y
e
s
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 K
a
y
 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
7
9
5
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.k
a
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 
w

it
h

 D
e
m

e
n

ti
a
 a

n
d

 
th

e
ir

 C
a
re

rs
 -

 
K

E
Y

/0
4
O

C
T

1
3
/0

5
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

W
a
y
n

e
 

F
it

z
g

e
ra

ld
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
 

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
4
 

N
/A

 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 f
o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 

  

R
o
b
 H
e
n
c
h
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
2
9
 

ro
b
.h
e
n
c
h
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

62



 

 L
o

n
g

 C
a
u

s
e
w

a
y
 

P
u

b
li

c
 R

e
a
lm

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 -

 
K

E
Y

/1
5
N

O
V

1
3
/0

1
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 e
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 

w
o
rk
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 L
o
n
g
 

C
a
u
s
e
w
a
y
 P
u
b
lic
 R
e
a
lm
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
s
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

G
r.

 
U

ff
. 
M

a
rc

o
 

C
e
re

s
te

 
L

e
a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 a
n

d
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

G
ro

w
th

, 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
P

la
n

n
in

g
, 

H
o

u
s
in

g
, 

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

E
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
4
 

N
/A

 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

S
im
o
n
 M
u
lli
n
s
 

P
ro
je
c
t 

E
n
g
in
e
e
r/
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

E
n
g
in
e
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
5
4
8
 

s
im
o
n
.m
u
lli
n
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o

ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

T
h

e
 F

u
tu

re
 D

ir
e
c
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e
s
 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 -
 

K
E

Y
/1

5
N

O
V

1
3
/0

2
 

T
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
it
y
. 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

 
2
0
 J

a
n

 2
0
1
4
 

Y
e
s
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

P
a
m
 S
e
tt
e
rf
ie
ld
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 

C
h
ild
re
n
 &
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
0
-1
3
) 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
9
7
 

p
a
m
.s
e
tt
e
rf
ie
ld
@
p
e
te
rb

o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

S
2
5
6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

a
n

d
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
s
h

ir
e
 

a
n

d
 P

e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h

 
C

C
G

 -
 

K
E

Y
/1

5
N

O
V

1
3
/0

3
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 

o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

W
a
y
n

e
 

F
it

z
g

e
ra

ld
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
 

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
4
 

N
/A

 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

P
a
u
l 
S
te
v
e
n
s
o
n
 

In
te
ri
m
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
3
0
6
 

p
a
u
l.
s
te
v
e
n
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
r

b
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

63



 

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

e
a
ti

n
g

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 F

o
r 

P
C

C
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 -

 
K

E
Y

/2
9
N

O
V

1
3
/0

2
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

th
e
 i
n
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 

d
is
tr
ic
t 
h
e
a
ti
n
g
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 

th
e
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll,
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 

P
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 L
id
o
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

D
a
v
id

 
S

e
a
to

n
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

 

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
4
 

N
/A

 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

S
te
v
e
n
 M
o
rr
is
 

C
lie
n
t 
P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
6
5
7
 

s
te
v
e
n
.m

o
rr
is
@
p
e
te
rb
o

ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

L
e
g

a
l 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

it
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 o
n

 B
e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

th
e
 E

n
e
rg

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o

m
p

a
n

y
 (

E
S

C
O

) 
"
B

lu
e
 S

k
y
 

P
e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h

"
 a

n
d

 
R

e
la

te
d

 P
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 
M

a
jo

r 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
/ 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 -
 

K
E

Y
/2

9
N

O
V

1
3
/0

3
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
le
g
a
l 

a
d
v
is
o
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

D
a
v
id

 
S

e
a
to

n
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

 

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
4
 

N
/A

 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

A
n
d
re
w
 C
o
x
 

S
e
n
io
r 
C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
6
5
 

a
n
d
y
.c
o
x
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

e
x
u

a
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 -

 
K

E
Y

/2
7
D

E
C

1
3
/0

1
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

th
e
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
x
u
a
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

Ir
e
n

e
 

W
a
ls

h
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

C
o

h
e
s
io

n
, 

S
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 
P

u
b

li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

 

B
e
tw

e
e
n

 1
 

F
e
b

 2
0
1
4
 

a
n

d
 3

1
 M

a
r 

2
0
1
4
 

N
/A

 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

J
o
 M
e
lv
in
 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
5
4
 

jo
a
n
n
e
.m
e
lv
in
@
p
e
te
rb

o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

64



 

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 T
a
x
 B

a
s
e
 a

n
d

 
N

N
D

R
 -

 
K

E
Y

/1
0
J

A
N

1
4
/0

1
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
ta
x
 b
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
. 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

 
2
0
 J

a
n

 2
0
1
4
 

Y
e
s
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

S
te
v
e
n
 P
ils
w
o
rt
h
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
6
4
 

S
te
v
e
n
.P
ils
w
o
rt
h
@
p
e
te

rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 T
a
x
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 -

 
K

E
Y

/1
0
J

A
N

1
4
/0

2
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 f
o
r 

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 t
o
 f
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

 
2
0
 J

a
n

 2
0
1
4
 

Y
e
s
 

S
tr
o
n
g
 a
n
d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

S
te
v
e
n
 P
ils
w
o
rt
h
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
6
4
 

S
te
v
e
n
.P
ils
w
o
rt
h
@
p
e
te

rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

a
n

d
 M

e
d

iu
m

 
T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 -

 
K

E
Y

/1
0
J

A
N

1
4
/0

3
 

D
ra
ft
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

a
n
d
 M

e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 

2
0
2
3
/2
4
 t
o
 b
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
s
 

a
 b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
a
p
it
a
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
T
re
a
s
u
ry
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
n
d
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

P
la
n
. 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

 
3
 F

e
b

 2
0
1
4
 

Y
e
s
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

S
te
v
e
n
 P
ils
w
o
rt
h
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
6
4
 

S
te
v
e
n
.P
ils
w
o
rt
h
@
p
e
te

rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

65



 

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 
M

e
d

iu
m

 T
e
rm

 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

2
0
2
3
/2

4
 

K
E

Y
/1

0
J

A
N

1
4
/0

4
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 f
o
r 

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 t
o
 f
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

 
2
4
 F

e
b

 2
0
1
4
 

Y
e
s
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

S
te
v
e
n
 P
ils
w
o
rt
h
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
6
4
 

S
te
v
e
n
.P
ils
w
o
rt
h
@
p
e
te

rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

's
 D

a
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 -

 
K

E
Y

/1
0
J

A
N

1
4
/0

5
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
 u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

c
a
re
rs
/ 
fa
m
ily
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 d
a
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

 
2
4
 M

a
r 

2
0
1
4
 

Y
e
s
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

fo
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

J
o
h
n
 G
if
fn
e
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
6
2
 

jo
h
n
.g
if
fn
e
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

66



  R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r'
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 a

t 
T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll
, 

B
ri

d
g

e
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 P
e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
P

E
1
 1

H
G

 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 (
A
s
s
e
ts
 a
n
d
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
P
la
c
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
) 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

W
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 E
n
e
rg
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
lie
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 /
 V
iv
a
c
it
y
 /
 S
E
R
C
O
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
IC
T
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
) 

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
’S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r’
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 a

t 
B

a
y
a
rd

 P
la

c
e
, 
B

ro
a
d

w
a

y
, 

P
E

1
 1

F
B
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 F
a
m
ily
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
  

S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
p
e
c
ia
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N
e
e
d
s
 /
 I
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
u
p
il 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 A
D

U
L

T
 S

O
C

IA
L

 C
A

R
E

 E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r’
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 a

t 
T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll
, 
B

ri
d

g
e
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 P
e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
P

E
1
 1

H
G

 
C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 (
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C
a
re
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
 

M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 H
e
a
lt
h
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t)

 
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

IE
S

 D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 D
ir

e
c
to

r’
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 a

t 
B

a
y
a
rd

 P
la

c
e
, 
B

ro
a
d

w
a
y
, 

P
E

1
 1

F
B

 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
  

S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
C
o
h
e
s
io
n
, 
S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

 D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 D

ir
e
c
to

r’
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 a

t 
T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll
, 
B

ri
d

g
e
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 P
e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
P

E
1
 1

H
G
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

H
R
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 (
T
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 R
e
w
a
rd
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
y
) 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 G
R

O
W

T
H

 A
N

D
 R

E
G

E
N

E
R

A
T

IO
N

 D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 D
ir

e
c
to

r’
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 S

tu
a
rt

 H
o

u
s
e
, 

S
t 

J
o

h
n

s
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 P
e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
P

E
1
 5

D
D

 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 (
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
, 
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
e
liv
e
ry
, 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
) 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 (
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
C
C
T
V
, 
C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
, 
M
a
rk
e
ts
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
T
ra
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 T
o
u
ri
s
m
) 

 

67



 

 68



U
P
D
A
T
E
D
 1
1
 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
3
  
 

 
 

S
T
R
O
N
G
 A
N
D
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
IV
E
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
IE
S
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 
It
e
m
 

T
im

in
g
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
n
d
 F
u
tu
re
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
n
d
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 P
a
u
li
n
a
 F
o
rd
 

1
0
m
in
s
 

 

D
ra
ft
 H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
1
3
 -
 2
0
1
8
 

   C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 S
a
ra
h
 H
e
b
b
le
th
w
a
it
e
 

2
0
m
in
s
 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 W

e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

 
   C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

3
0
m
in
s
 

 

C
R
IM

E
 A
N
D
 D
IS
O
R
D
E
R
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 
 

 

4
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
  

 D
ra
ft
 R
e
p
o
rt
 1
6
 

M
a
y
  

F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 2
3
 

M
a
y
 

S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
P
la
n
 
2
0
1
1
-2
0
1
4
 
(2
0
1
3
 

R
e
v
is
io
n
) 

   C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 G
a
ry
 G
o
o
s
e
 

5
5
m
in
s
 

 

 
 

 
 

C
R
IM

E
 A
N
D
 D
IS
O
R
D
E
R
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 
 

 
2
4
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

 D
ra
ft
 R
e
p
o
rt
 8
 J
u
ly
 

F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 1
5
 

J
u
ly
 

 

S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 P
la
n
 –
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 U
p
d
a
te
 –
 R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 C
ri
m
e
 

 T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 C
ri
m
e
 

a
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 P
la
n
 

5
5
 m

in
s
 

 

69



U
P
D
A
T
E
D
 1
1
 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
3
  
 

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 
It
e
m
 

T
im

in
g
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 G
a
ry
 G
o
o
s
e
  

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 C
a
n
 D
o
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
  

 T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
fo
rm

s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 C
a
n
D
o
. 
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

 
 

S
T
R
O
N
G
 A
N
D
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
IV
E
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
IE
S
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 
 

V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
 -
  
V
iv
a
c
it
y
 

 T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 w
h
a
t 
V
iv
a
c
it
y
 h
a
s
 

s
p
e
n
t 
m
o
n
e
y
 o
n
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
is
 b
e
n
e
fi
tt
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
lly
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 R
ic
k
y
 F
u
ll
e
r 

 
 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
  

 T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
. 
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
A
n
n
e
tt
e
 J
o
y
c
e
 

 
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 I
n
 A
 D
a
y
: 
A
 F
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 W

e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

 
 T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 a
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo
r 
a
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 i
n
 a
 D
a
y
 

re
v
ie
w
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

. 
 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
P
a
u
li
n
a
 F
o
rd
 /
 A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
R
IM

E
 A
N
D
 D
IS
O
R
D
E
R
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 
 

 
1
1
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

 D
ra
ft
 R
e
p
o
rt
  
2
3
 

A
u
g
 

F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
  
2
 

S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 P
la
n
 –
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 U
p
d
a
te
 –
 T
a
c
k
li
n
g
 a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 

h
a
te
 c
ri
m
e
 

 

5
5
 m

in
s
 

 

70



U
P
D
A
T
E
D
 1
1
 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
3
  
 

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 
It
e
m
 

T
im

in
g
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 A
n
ti
s
o
c
ia
l 

B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 H
a
te
 C
ri
m
e
 a
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 S
a
fe
r 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 P
la
n
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 G
a
ry
 G
o
o
s
e
 

 S
T
R
O
N
G
 A
N
D
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
IV
E
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
IE
S
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 

 
 

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
o
h
e
s
io
n
, 
S
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
  

 T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 m

a
d
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

p
o
rt
fo
lio
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 J
a
w
a
id
 K
h
a
n
/ 
C
ll
r 
W
a
ls
h
 

 
 

C
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 H
e
ri
ta
g
e
  

 T
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
d
lin
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 D
ra
ft
 n
e
w
 C
u
lt
u
re
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 R
ic
k
y
 F
u
ll
e
r/
D
o
m
in
ic
 H
u
d
s
o
n
 

 
 

V
iv
a
c
it
y
 C
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 L
e
is
u
re
 T
ru
s
t 
–
 V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
 

 T
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
n
d
 n
o
te
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 R
ic
k
e
y
 F
u
ll
e
r/
M
a
rg
a
re
t 
W
e
lt
o
n
/D
o
m
in
ic
 

H
u
d
s
o
n
  

 
 

S
e
p
t 

 

A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 M
in
u
te
s
  

 T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 u
n
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 m
in
u
te
s
. 
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 D
a
n
ia
 C
a
s
ta
g
li
u
o
lo
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

71



U
P
D
A
T
E
D
 1
1
 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
3
  
 

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 
It
e
m
 

T
im

in
g
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

C
R
IM

E
 A
N
D
 D
IS
O
R
D
E
R
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 
 

 

S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 P
la
n
 –
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 U
p
d
a
te
 –
 B
u
il
d
in
g
 s
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
a
n
d
 m

o
re
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 B
u
ild
in
g
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 m

o
re
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 S
a
fe
r 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 P
la
n
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 G
a
ry
 G
o
o
s
e
  

5
5
 m

in
s
 

 

S
T
R
O
N
G
 A
N
D
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
IV
E
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
IE
S
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 
 

H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 A
m
b
it
io
n
  

 T
o
 P
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
it
h
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
’s
 

h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 a
m
b
it
io
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
  

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 R
ic
k
y
 F
u
ll
e
r/
D
o
m
in
ic
 H
u
d
s
o
n
  

 
 

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

 T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
 

o
f 
th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
  

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
/C
ll
r 
N
o
rt
h
 

 
 

1
9
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

 D
ra
ft
 R
e
p
o
rt
 1
 

N
o
v
 

F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 8
 

N
o
v
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 S
e
le
c
ti
v
e
 L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 G
la
d
s
to
n
e
, 

M
Il
lf
ie
ld
 N
e
w
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
n
d
 E
a
s
tf
ie
ld
 A
re
a
s
 o
f 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

 T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s
e
le
c
ti
v
e
 l
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 B
e
li
n
d
a
 C
h
il
d
  

 

 
 

72



U
P
D
A
T
E
D
 1
1
 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
3
  
 

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 
It
e
m
 

T
im

in
g
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 i
n
 a
 D
a
y
: 
U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 

Im
p
a
c
ts
 o
f 
W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

 o
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h

 

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
it
h
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 i
n
 a
 D
a
y
 e
v
e
n
t 

o
n
 1
7
th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 /
 P
a
u
li
n
a
 F
o
rd
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

C
R
IM

E
 A
N
D
 D
IS
O
R
D
E
R
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 
 

 

S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 P
la
n
 –
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 U
p
d
a
te
 

 T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 t
o
 i
te
m
s
 f
o
r 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 P
la
n
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 G
a
ry
 G
o
o
s
e
 

5
5
 m

in
s
 

 

F
ly
 T
ip
p
in
g
 –
 P
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 R
e
c
o
rd
s
  

 T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
it
h
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 p
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 
fl
y
-t
ip
p
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 G
a
ry
 G
o
o
s
e
/R
a
y
 H
o
o
k
e
 

 
 

S
T
R
O
N
G
 A
N
D
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
IV
E
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
IE
S
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
  

 
 

1
5
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
4
 

 D
ra
ft
 R
e
p
o
rt
 3
0
 

D
e
c
 

F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
  
6
 

J
a
n
 

O
v
e
ra
rc
h
in
g
 C
u
lt
u
re
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 T
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
r 
a
 n
e
w
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
C
u
lt
u
re
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 D
o
m
in
ic
 H
u
d
s
o
n
/R
ic
k
y
 F
u
ll
e
r 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
7
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 i
n
 a
 D
a
y
: 
 F
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

 
 

 

73



U
P
D
A
T
E
D
 1
1
 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
3
  
 

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 
It
e
m
 

T
im

in
g
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

2
0
1
4
 

(J
o
in
t 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
s
) 

T
o
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
n
 i
n
 d
e
p
th
 o
n
e
 d
a
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
it
h
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
f 
W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
g
e
n
d
a
s
 a
n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 m
it
ig
a
te
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
: 
 P
a
u
li
n
a
 F
o
rd
 /
 A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

E
x
tr
a
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

D
a
te
 T
B
C
 

S
e
le
c
ti
v
e
 L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

 
 

 
C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g
 F
a
m
il
ie
s
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
0
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
1
4
 

(J
o
in
t 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 

th
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
s
) 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
P
la
n
 

T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

a
n
d
 M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
P
la
n
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
h
n
 H
a
rr
is
o
n
/S
te
v
e
n
 P
il
s
w
o
rt
h
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
R
IM

E
 A
N
D
 D
IS
O
R
D
E
R
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
  

 
 

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 P
la
n
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 G
a
ry
 G
o
o
s
e
 

5
5
 m

in
s
 

 

S
T
R
O
N
G
 A
N
D
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
IV
E
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
IE
S
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 
 

2
6
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

 D
ra
ft
 R
e
p
o
rt
 1
0
 

M
a
r 

F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
  
1
7
 

M
a
r 

V
iv
a
c
it
y
 –
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

  

 
 

74



U
P
D
A
T
E
D
 1
1
 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
3
  
 

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 
It
e
m
 

T
im

in
g
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
K
e
v
in
 T
ig
h
e
 

C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 P
la
n
  

 
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 A
n
n
e
tt
e
 J
o
y
c
e
  

 
 

 T
o
 b
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 i
n
to
 w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
: 

L
o
c
a
lis
m
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

 

75



76

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 19 November 2013
	5 Safer Peterboroguh Partnership Plan 2011 - 14
	SPP Partnership Plan 2011 -14 - 140115 - SSCSC
	Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2013 final - 140115 - SSCSC
	Safer Peterborough Partnership Performance Report - 140113 - SSCSC

	6 Fly-Tipping Prosecutions
	7 A Strategy for Culture, Recreation and the Arts for Peterborough
	8 Forward Plan of Key Decisions
	Appendix 1 - Forward Plan of Key Decisions - 140115 - SSCSC

	9 Work Programme

